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Our Vision
To be the most sought after Sri Lankan Company providing preferred 

solutions for personal care and cleaning needs of customers in both local 

and selected international markets.
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Notice of Meeting 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Annual General 
Meeting of The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC will be 
held at Havelock City Club House, No. 324, Havelock 
Road, Colombo 6, on Friday the 8th September 2023 
at 3.00 p.m. for the following purposes: -

1. To resolve to receive and consider the Report of the 
Directors and the Audited Financial Statement of 
Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2023 and 
the Report of the Auditors thereon;

2. To resolve to declare that the age limit stipulated in 
Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 
shall not apply to Mrs. Amari Mandika Wijewar-
dene who has attained the retirement age stipulated 
in Section 210 of the said Act and who has attained 
the age of 73 years and that her re-appointment for 
another one year in terms of Section 211 of the 
said Act be approved and to Resolve to re-elect her 
as a Director of the Company in terms of the said 
Section 211;

3. To resolve to re-elect Mrs. Amari Mandika Wijewar-
dene who retires by rotation at the Annual General 
Meeting and has offered herself to be re-elected, as 
a Director;

4. To resolve to declare that the age limit stipulated in 
Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 
shall not apply to Mr. Vithanage Mahinda Jinadasa 
Abeywickrama Perera who has attained the retire-
ment age stipulated in Section 210 of the said Act 
and who has attained the age of 78 years and that 
his re-appointment for another one year in terms 
of Section 211 of the said Act be approved and to 
Resolve to re-elect him as a Director of the Company 
in terms of the said Section 211;

5. To resolve to re-elect Mrs. Chulodara Sairandhri 
Mandika Samarasinghe who retires by rotation at 
the Annual General Meeting and has offered herself 
to be re-elected, as a Director;

6. To resolve to re-appoint M/s. Ernst & Young, Char-
tered Accountants as the Auditors of the Company 
and to authorize the Board of Directors to determine 
their remuneration;

7. To resolve to declare a first and final Dividend of 
Rs. 1.50 per share as recommended by the Board 
of Directors on 25th July 2023; and

8. To consider any other business of which due notice 
has been given.

By order of the Board
for and on behalf of
THE SWADESHI INDUSTRIAL WORKS PLC

M & A Company Secretaries (Private) Limited
Secretaries to the Company
No. 28 (Level 2),
W.A.D. Ramanayake Mawatha,
Colombo 02.
26th July 2023
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Name of the Company

The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC

Legal Form

A Quoted Public Company
with limited liability incorporated
in Sri Lanka in 1941

Stock Exchange Listing

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange of Sri Lanka.

Registered Office

No 57,	
Colombo Road
Kandana

Factory & Office

No 57,	
Colombo Road
Kandana

Secretaries

M & A Company Secretaries (Private) Ltd. 
No. 28(Level 2)
W.A.D Ramanayake Mawatha,
Colombo 02

Auditors

Messrs Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants
201, De Saram Place
Colombo 10

Lawyers

Messrs D L & F De Saram
Attorney- at Law & Notaries Public
No 47, Alexandra Place
Colombo 07

Bankers

Peoples Bank
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Nations Trust Bank PLC
DFCC Bank PLC 
Hatton National Bank PLC
National Development Bank PLC.

Corporate Information
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Director’s Profile

Board of Director

Mrs.A.M. Wijewardene	
(Chairperson)

Mrs. A.M. Wijewardene has over 38 years of	
Commercial and General Management experience in
manufacturing and export businesses.

Mr.P.M.Muthukuda
(Alternate Director to Ms.A.M.Wijewardene
Appointed with effect from 24th February 2016)

Member of Institute of Chemistry Ceylon and Possess
a M.Phil and BSc(Special) Degree from University of
Peradeniya. Further he has Diploma in Management
from Open University of Sri Lanka. He is a Chartered
Chemist having over 33 years of Experience in Research
and Development and Management.

Mr.V.M.J.A.Perera
(Non Executive Director)

Member of the Institute of Incorporated Engineers,
Sri Lanka. Has more than Forty years experience
in Mechanical Engineering, including General
Management experience in Manufacturing and Factory
Management.

Mr.P.D. Samarasinghe
(Non Executive Director)

Mr. Samarasinghe has over 30 years of professional 
and commercial experience and serves on the Board 
of Directors of several publicly listed and unlisted 
corporates. 
Mr. Samarasinghe was the Past Chairman of the Sri 
Lanka Institute of Directors, Employers’ Federation 
of Ceylon, Industrial Association of Sri Lanka, 
Condominium Developers Association of Sri Lanka 
and EFC Affiliated Group of Companies. He was the 
Past President of the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants Sri Lanka Division and former Council 
Member, CIMA (UK). He served as a Board member 
of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce and Sri Lanka 
Accounting and Auditing Standards Monitoring Board. 
Mr. Samarasinghe is a Fellow Member of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants UK and holds a 
Master’s Degree in Business Administration.

Mrs.C.S.M.Samarasinghe
(Managing Director/Deputy Chairperson)

Possesses a BA Honours Degree and Masters Degree
from the University of Hull United Kingdom. Has
more than twenty years experience in General
Management and Supply Chain Management and
functions as Managing Director/Deputy Chairperson of 
the Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC and its subsidiaries

Mr.Thusantha Wijemanna
(Non Executive Independent Director)

Obtained the Bachelor of Laws degree (LLB) with first
class Hons from the University of Colombo and Master
of Law Degree (LLM) from the University of London. An 
Attorney at Law and Notary Public. A commonwealth
and Chevening scholar in the United Kingdom. Fellow
of the Institute of Advance Legal studies, London.
A Council member of the open universities of Sri
Lanka and a Director of Sanasa Development Bank.
Former Legal adviser to the Ministry of Foreign affairs
and Director General of SAARC Arbitration Council
in Islamabad. Past Chairmen of National Institute of
Business Management (NIBM) and Association of
Corporate Lawyers Sri Lanka. Counts for over thirty
five years of experience as lawyer, Administrator and
Banker.

Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe (Non Executive 
Independent Director)

An Honours Graduate in Law from the University of
Hull, England, a Barrister of the Middle Temple, 
England, and an Attorney-at-Law. Holds a Master’s 
Degree in International Relations from the University 
of Colombo.A Senior Counsel with over 29 years 
of experience in Civil Litigation in the original and 
Appellate Courts of Sri Lanka who specialises in 
Banking and Commercial Law.
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It is with pleasure that I present the Annual Report and 
Audited Financial Statements of the Swadeshi Industrial 
Works PLC for the year ended 31st March 2023. Find 
below a brief review of the commercial environment 
in which the Company operated and the performance 
of the Group during the period under review.

External Environment	

The fluid political situation and heightened fiscal, 
external, and financial sector imbalances posed 
significant uncertainty for the Sri Lankan economy. 
Inflation reached an unprecedented 64.3 percent in 
August 2022. 

Despite Sri Lanka securing a USD 2.9bn loan 
commitment from the IMF, the economy contracted 
for two consecutive years and is expected to stabilize 
in 2023. Growth is expected to resume in 2024-26, but 
the recovery will be slow, given the damage caused to 
consumer confidence and disposable income due to 
the country’s economic and financial crisis.

Corporate Performance

The Group Turnover increased by 55% to record Rs 
4,819 Mn for the year ended 31st March 2023. The 
Group recorded an Operating Profit of Rs. 384 million 
for 2022/2023, compared to Rs. 79 million in the prior 
year.  Although the steep depreciation of the USD and 
inflation resulted in higher overall costs the higher sales 
prices improved profitability.  The Group’s Profit Before 
Tax increased to Rs 256 Mn for 2022/2023, against Rs. 
15.7 million in 2021/22.

Future

Although Sri Lanka has a difficult journey ahead, we 
believe that the country will eventually overcome the 
current Economic crisis by implementing the much- 
needed corrective measures and reforms.

With the market demand contracting, the focus this 
year will be to retain market share and explore export 
market opportunities to mitigate risk. We will further 
consolidate our distribution and enhance the brand 
image of our products during the year.

Acknowledgement

I extend my sincere appreciation to our valued
customers and business partners for their continued
loyalty, support and cooperation.

I wish to thank the members of the Board and
Management team for their contribution and 
Shareholders for the display of confidence.

..........................................
A.M Wijewardene  (Mrs)

Chairperson
	                         25th July 2023

Chairperson’s Review
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors of Swadeshi Industrial Works 

PLC is committed to maintain high standards of 

Corporate Governance.

The Directors recognize Corporate Governance as the 

systems employed to manage the business and affairs 

of the Company towards enhancing the objective of 

realizing Shareholder value, whilst taking into account 

the interest of all Stakeholders. This statement sets 

out the Corporate Governance policies, practices and 

processes adopted by the Board.

The Board and its Operations

The Board of Directors of The Swadeshi Industrial 

Works PLC comprise six Directors. The Chairperson, 

Managing Director are Executive Directors of the 

Company. The other four Directors are Non-Executive 

Directors of whom two are Independent Directors. 

Non-Executive Directors of the Company have 

made declarations of their independency or non-

independency.

During the year the Board met on  12 occasions. Prior 

to each meeting, the Directors were provided with   

all relevant management information and background 

material relevant to the Agenda to enable informed 

decisions. Board Papers are submitted in advance 

on group performance, capital Investments, working 

capital and other issues which require specific Board 

approval.

The Board is responsible for:

	 Providing leadership, formulating, reviewing and 	

	 monitoring the implementation of business strategy 

	 and policy;

	 Ensuring compliance with statutory regulations; 	

	 Reporting on their stewardship to the shareholders; 

	 Managing risks;

	 Approving annual capital and operating budgets

	  and reviewing performance against budgets; 		

	 Approving the interim and final financial statements 

	 of the Group; and

	 Determining and recommending dividends for the 	

	 approval of the shareholders.

Sub Committees of the Board

In compliance with the requirement of the Code of 

Best Practice, the Board has delegated responsibilities 

to three Board Sub Committees which operate within 

clearly defined terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three Directors 

namely Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna, Mr. Hugh Kavinda 

Dias - Abeyesinghe and Mr. Pravir Samarasinghe 

and two of its members i.e. Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias 

Abeyesinghe and Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna are 

Independent Directors. The Managing Director & Chief 

Executive Officer and Head of Finance attend meetings 

on invitation.

The Audit Committee Report on page 11 describes 

the activities carried out by the Committee during the 

financial year.

Related Party Transaction Review Committee  (RPTRC)

 

The Related Party Transaction Review Committee 

(RPTRC) comprises of three members namely 

Mr.Thusantha Wijemanna, Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias - 

Abeyesinghe and Mr. Pravir Samarasinghe and two of its 

members i.e. Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe and 

Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna are Independent Directors. 

The Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and 

Head of Finance attend meetings on invitation. The 

Related Party Transaction Review Committee Report 

on page 13 describes the activities carried out by the 

Committee during the financial year.
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Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee 

comprises of three Non-Executive Directors namely, Mr 

Mahinda Perera, Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna and Mr. 

Hugh Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe. Two of its members 

are Independent Directors.

The Report of the Remuneration Committee is on page 

12 which highlights its main activities.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for instituting effective 

Internal control systems to safeguard the assets of the 

Company, and ensure that accurate and complete 

records are maintained from which reliable information 

is generated. The system includes controls including 

financial, operational and risk management.

Internal Audits are carried out by external Chartered 

Accountancy firms to ensure control systems are 

appropriately maintained. The findings are reviewed 

first by the Audit Committee and significant issues are 

thereafter reported to the Board of Directors.

A budgetary control system is in place, in which 

annual budgets identifying the critical parameters and 

functional objectives, are prepared and approved by 

the Board at the commencement of a financial year, 

and its achievement monitored through a monthly 

management reporting system.

 

Compliance

The financial statements of the Group are prepared 

in compliance with the guidelines of the Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards and other statutory regulations. 

Financial statements are published quarterly in line 

with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange 

through which all significant developments are reported 

to Shareholders quarterly. The Board of Directors, to the 

best of their knowledge and belief are satisfied that all 

statutory payments have been made up to date.

Going Concern

The Directors have continued to use the ‘Going 

Concern’ basis in the preparation of the financial 

statements. After careful review of the financial 

position and cash flow status of the Group, the Board of 

Directors believe that the Group has adequate resources 

to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance

    SEC Rules on Corporate Governance  Section 6

Colombo Stock Exchange  Criteria	 Status of Swadeshi 
	 Industrial Works PLC 

Non Executive Directors	  In Compliance 

Independent Directors	  In Compliance 

Remuneration Committee	  In Compliance 

Audit Committee	  In Compliance

Related Party  Transaction Review Committee(RPTRC)	  In Compliance

Name of Director	           Executive	 Non executive	 Independent

Mrs. A.M.Wjewardene

Mrs. C.S.M.Samarasinghe

Mr. V.M.J.A. Perera

Mr.Thusantha Wijemanna

Mr. P.D.Samarasinghe

Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe
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The Audit Committee Comprises the following 
members ;

Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe - Chairman - 
Independent Director
Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna - Independent Director 
Mr.Pravir Samarasinghe - Non Executive Director

The Chairman of the Committee is a Barrister and an 
Attorney at Law. Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna is also an 
Attorney-at-Law. Mr Pravir Samarasinghe is a Fellow 
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountant of 
Sri Lanka and Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountant United Kingdom.

The Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and
Head of Finance are invited if deemed necessary for 
Audit Committee meetings.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the 
Board in fulfilling its overall responsibilities for the 
financial reporting process, the system of internal 
control over financial reporting, the audit process and 
the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with 
laws and regulations.

The principal activities of the Committee during the 
year are detailed below.

Meetings:
The Audit Committee conducted four meetings during 
the year under review.

Financial Reporting
The Committee reviewed the Quarterly & Annual 
Financial Statements and Annual Report prior to 
publication to ensure such Statements are prepared in 
accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
and other provisions.

Internal Audit
The Internal Audit program were reviewed by the 
Committee to ensure that an effective Internal Control
 
System is in place to safeguard the Company’s Assets 
and the reliability of the Company Financial Statements. 
These Internal Audit programs were implemented 
through external Chartered Accountancy firms and the 

Internal Audit Reports were reviewed and explanations 
obtained from the Management.

Working Capital and Treasury management were 
monitored.

Risk Management
Company has adopted an enterprise risk management 
methodology to assess the potential risk exposure to 
each of the Group Companies. (Please refer note no.24 
to the Financial Statements on the risk management 
objectives and policies)

Internal Controls
During its Meetings, the Committee reviewed the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems and the 
Group’s exposure to business and financial risks. 
Processes are in place to safeguard the assets of the 
organization and to ensure that the financial reporting 
system can be relied upon in the preparation and 
presentation of financial statements. A Budgetary 
control and monitoring system is implemented.

Conclusion
The Committee having given due consideration to the 
nature of the services provided by the Auditors and 
the level of audit services provided by the Auditors to 
The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC and the audit fees 
charged by them, are satisfied of the Independence of 
the External Auditors. The Committee also noted that 
the External Auditors have no conflict of interest that 
had arisen during the year ended 31st March 2023 and 
hence the independence of the External Auditors has 
not been impaired. The fees paid to the Auditors are 
shown under page no 17.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not 
have any relationship (other than that of an Auditor) 
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The 
Auditors also do not have any interest in the Company 
or its subsidiaries as required by Section 168 (1) (j) of 
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

The Committee also noted the arrangements made by 
the Auditors to maintain their independence.

Report of the Audit Committee
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The Audit Committee recommended to the Board 
of Directors that M/s Ernst & Young, Chartered 
Accountants be re-appointed as auditors of the 
Company for the financial year ending 31st March 
2023, subject to the approval of the shareholders at 
the Annual General Meeting. The recommendation 
was made upon the confirmation obtained from the 
Auditors on their compliance with the independence 
guidance given in the Code of Ethics of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

...............................
Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe
25th July 2023

Report of the Audit Committee
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The Remuneration Committee comprise three 

Non-Executive Director’s namely, Mr. Mahinda 

Perera, Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna and Mr. Hugh 

Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe. Two of its members are 

Independent Directors. The Committee is responsible 

for recommending the policy of remuneration for the 

Executive Directors and Senior Management.

The Committee took into consideration the Company, 

Group and employee performance in determining the 

overall remuneration policy.

....................................
Mr. Mahinda Perera
Chairman
25th July 2023

Report of the Remuneration Committee
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The Related Party Transactions Review Committee
 (RPTRC) comprises of the following members;

Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias - Abeyesinghe - Chairman 
Independent Director
Mr.Thusantha Wijemanna – Member
Independent Director
Mr.Pravir Samarasinghe – Member
Non Executive Director

The Chairman of the Committee is a Barrister and
an Attorney at Law. Mr.Thusantha Wijemanna is an
Attorney-at-Law. Mr Pravir Samarasinghe is a Fellow
Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountant
of Sri Lanka and Chartered Institute of Management
Accountant United Kingdom.

The Managing Director & Head of Finance are invited if 
deemed necessary for Related Party Transaction Review 
Committee meetings.

Objective of the Committee
The objective of the Committee is to ensure that the
interests of shareholders as a whole are taken into
account by the Company when entering into Related
Party Transactions, in compliance with the provisions
of the Code of best Practice and Listing Rules. Further 
the Committee takes certain measures to prevent 
Directors, Chief Executive Officers or substantial 
Shareholders taking advantage of their positions.

Role and Responsibilities
The mandate of the Committee is derived from the
Code of best Practice and the Listing Rules and includes 
mainly the following:

• Developing and maintaining a related party
transactions policy consistent with the provisions 
of the Code of best Practices and the Listing Rules.
• Reviewing all proposed Related Party Transactions 
(“RPT”) to ensure compliance with the provisions of the 
Code of best Practice and the Listing Rules.
• Advising the Board of Directors on making immediate 
market disclosures and disclosures in the Annual Report 

where necessary, in relation to non-recurrent and 
recurrent related party transactions.
• Setting guidelines for senior management to follow 
in such circumstances.

Activities during the year
The Committee held meetings every quarter and 
reviewed all Related Party Transactions of the company 
in order to ensure that those transactions have taken 
place in accordance with the guidelines established by 
the Committee in compliance with the Code of best 
Practice and Listing rules. The Committee was satisfied 
that the transactions are on normal commercial terms 
and are not prejudicial to the interests of the entity and 
its minority shareholders. The minutes of the meetings 
are tabled at Board meetings.

It was noted that, during the financial year there were 
no Non-Recurrent Related Party Transactions where the 
aggregate value exceeds 10% of the equity or 5% of 
the total assets, whichever is lower. Recurrent Related 
Party Transactions where the aggregate value exceeds 
10% of the gross revenue income is given Note.22 to 
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st March 2023. Thus, shareholder approval by way 
of a Special Resolution or immediate disclosure was 
not required.

The Board of Directors confirmed that the related party 
transactions are in compliance with the Code of Best 
Practices and the Listing Rules.

All related party transactions for the year ended 31st 
March 2023 are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

……………………………….
Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias Abeyesinghe
25th July 2023

Report of the Related Party Transactions
Review Committee(RPTRC)
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The Annual Report of The Board of Directors
The board of directors of the Swadeshi Industrial 
Works PLC take pleasure in presenting the Annual 
Report together with the audited financial statements 
of the group and the company, for the year ended 31st 
march 2023. 

About the Company 
The swadeshi industrial works plc is a public company 
with limited liability incorporated on 18th December 
1941 under the company’s ordinance no. 51 of 
1938 and re-registered on 23rd April 2008 under the 
provisions of the companies act no. 7 of 2007 and 
assigned the company re-registration number PQ 133. 
The company shares are listed since the year 1970. At 
present the company shares are listed in the Diri savi 
board. 

Principal Activities of The Company 
The principal activities of the company continue to be 
manufacturing and marketing of toilet soap, laundry 
soap and personal care products during the year 
under review (as required by section 168 (1) (a). There 
have been no material changes to the activities of the 
company or any of its subsidiaries during the period 
under review.

Review of operations 
The chairperson’s review at page 05 describes the year’s 
activities and future developments of the company. 

Future Developments 
The group intends to further strengthen its distribution 
and marketing activities and to enhance the product 
range to improve turnover and profitability.

Group Revenue 
The gross turnover of the group was Rs. 4,819 Mn. 
trade between group companies is conducted at fair 
market prices. 

Capital Expenditure 
Capital expenditure on Property, Plant, Equipment and 
work-in-progress incurred during the year under review 
is disclosed under Note 11 to the financial statements. 
the value of property stated in the financial statements 
is not in excess of its current market values.

Taxation 
The corporate income tax rate applicable to the 
company was 18% for the first six months and 30% for 
second six months respectualy. Details of the group’s 
exposure to taxation are disclosed in Note 09 to the 
financial statements. 

Stated Capital
The stated capital of the company as at 31st march 2023 
was Rs. 150,634,670/-. Details of the stated capital is 
given under Note 17 to the financial statements. 

Financial Statements
The financial statements which include the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, 
statement of changes in equity, cash flow statements 
and notes to financial statements are given at pages 23 
to 27 and have been prepared in conformity with the 
Sri Lanka accounting standards and the requirement of 
section 168(1) (b) of the companies act no 7 of 2007 
and the listing rules of the Colombo stock exchange.  
The directors approved the financial statements on 
25th July 2023

Auditors Report 
The financial statements for the period under review 
were audited by Messrs Ernst & young, Chartered 
Accountants, for the year ended 31st march 2023 and 
the independent auditor’s report issued thereon appears 
at page 19 of this annual report as required by section 
168(1) (c) of the companies act No. 7 of 2007.

Accounting policies and changes during the Year 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
financial statements of the company and the group are 
given at Pages 28 to 45 of this annual report as required 
by section 168(1) (d) of the companies act.  There have 
been no changes in the accounting policies adopted by 
the company during the period under review.

Annual Report of the Board of Directors
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Directors’ Remuneration and Other Benefits 
Directors’ fees and emoluments, in respect of the 
group for the financial year ended 31st march 2023 
is as follows, 
		  	 2022/2023          2021/2022 
				    Rs.                      Rs
Directors’ Fees and 	 32,595,464	 29,972,264
Emoluments 
This is being disclosed as required by section 168(1) 
(f) of the companies act no. 7 of 2007.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts
The company maintains an interest register as required 
by section 168(1) (e) the companies’ act No. 07 of 
2007. Information pertaining to directors’ interest in 
contracts and decisions on emoluments are disclosed 
in the interest register. 
Directors’ interest in contracts in relation to transactions 
with related entities, transactions with key management 
personnel and other related disclosures are stated in 
Note 22 (Related Party Disclosures) to the financial 
statements. In addition, the company carried out 
transactions in the ordinary course of business with 
group entities having one or more directors in common. 
The directors have no direct or indirect interest in any 
other contracts. 
The company and its subsidiaries carried out transactions 
in the ordinary course of its business at commercial 
terms with the following entities during the year.

Directors 
The names and profile of the directors of the company 
who served on the board during the financial year are 
shown at page 04. There were no new appointments 
or resignations to the board during the financial year 
under review. This is being disclosed as required by 
section 168(1) (h) of the companies act no. 7 of 2007.

Recommendations for Re-election 
Mrs. Chulodara Sairandhri Mandika Samarasinghe 
directors who retire by rotation being eligible, are 
recommended for re-election. 
In accordance with section 211 of the companies act 
no.07 of 2007 Mrs. Amari Mandika Wijewardene who 
has attained 73 years of age and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-election.
In accordance with section 211 of the companies 
act No.07 of 2007 Mr. Vithanage Mahinda Jinadasa 
Abeywickrama Perera who has attained 78 years of age 
and being eligible has offered himself for re-election. 

Name Of Related Undertaking

Sedawatte Group Transport and vehicle
Hiring Charges

10,445,027 6,620,000

Details 2022/2023
(Rs.)

2021/2022
(Rs.)
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Board Committees 
The board has appointed three sub-committees namely, 
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and 
related party transactions review committee (RPTRC). 
Their composition and report are given at pages 10 to 
13 of the annual report.

Donations 
During the financial year, the company has not made 
any donations. This is being disclosed as required by 
section 168(1) (g) of the companies act No. 7 of 2007. 

Events Subsequent to The Balance Sheet Date
There have not been any material events that occurred 
subsequent to the balance sheet date that require 
disclosure or adjustments to the financial statements, 
other than those disclosed, if any, under Note 26 to the 
financial statements.

Corporate Governance / Internal Control 
The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the 
group’s corporate governance and the system of internal 
control. the practices implemented by the company in 
relation to internal controls are explained in the report 
of corporate governance at Page 06 to 09 of this report. 
the board is satisfied with the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control for the period up to date of signing 
the financial statements.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting 
The statement on directors’ responsibility for financial 
reporting of the company and the group is set out at 
page 18 of this report. 

Compliance With Other Laws & Regulations 
The group has not engaged in any activity contravening 
the laws and regulations applicable in Sri Lanka. 
Financial statements are published quarterly is in line 
with the listing rules of the Colombo stock exchange 
through which all significant developments are reported 
to shareholders on a quarterly basis. 

Employment Policies
The company’s employment policy is totally non-
discriminatory and equal opportunities are given to all 
employees irrespective of ethnic, race, origin, religion, 
political opinion, gender or marital status. The company 
applies ‘equal opportunity policy’ ensuring that all 
decisions are based on merit and qualification.
Further the employment policies are designed to attract 
talent, train and develop required skills and retain 
such persons for the benefit of the group, salaries are 
usually adjusted to reflect the company and employee 
performance. 
The employees are always encouraged to discuss 
issues relating to operations and to make suggestions 
to improve performance.

Directors’ Shareholding 

The shareholding of the Directors as at the end of the year is given below.

Mrs. A.M. Wijewardene – Director

Mr.  P.D Samarasinghe -  Director
Mr. V.M.J.A.  Perera -  Director

Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna - Director

Mrs.  C.S.M Samarasinghe -  Director

Mr. Hugh Kavinda Dias -  Abeyesinghe -  Director

Mr. P.M Muthukuda – Alternate  Director

As At                                                As At                                                
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

109  109  

  86     86   
- -

 01  01

 01  01

50,388 50,388

2,298 2,298
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Details of material issues pertaining to employees and
Industrial relations of the Entity
The Company’s Employment Policy is totally 
nondiscriminatory and equal opportunities are given to
all employees irrespective of ethnic, race, origin, 
religion, political opinion, gender or marital status. The
Company applies ‘equal opportunity policy’ ensuring
that all decisions are based on merit and qualification.
The employees are always encouraged to discuss 
issues relating to operations and to make suggestions 
to improve performance.
Company is compliance with section 7.6-vii and there
were no any material issues pertaining to employees
and industrial relations of the Entity 

Annual General Meeting 
The annual general meeting will be held at the 
Havelock city, Club house, No. 324, havelock road, 
Colombo 05. The notice of the annual general meeting 
is on Page 02 of this report.

Dividends 
The directors recommend a Dividend of Rs. 1.50/= 
per share for the financial year ended 31st march 2023.

Auditors 
The financial statements for the year have been audited 
by Messrs Ernst & young, chartered accountants. In 
accordance with the companies act no. 7 of 2007, 
a resolution proposing the re-appointment of Messrs 
Ernst & young, chartered accountants, as auditors to 
the company and authorizing the directors to fix their 
remuneration will be proposed at the annual general 
meeting.
Group’s auditors for the period under review were 
Messrs Ernst & young, chartered accountants. The 
following amounts were payable to them in respect 
of 2022/2023. This is being disclosed as required by 
section 168(1) (i) of the companies act no. 7 of 2007.

		  Company	 Group
		  Rs.		  Rs.
Audit Fees	 1,495,851/-	 1,984,733/-

As far as the directors are aware, the auditors do not 
have any relationship (other than that of an auditor) 
with the company or any of its subsidiaries other than 
those disclosed above. Auditors also do not have any 
interest in the company or any of its subsidiaries and 
this disclosure is being made as required by section 
168 (j) of the companies act no. 7 of 2007.

     ..........................	 .	 .........................
            Director		                      Director

.......................
M, & A Company Secretaries (Private) Limited,
No. 28 (Level 2), W A D Ramanayake Mawatha, 
Colombo 2.
25th July 2023
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility

In keeping with the provisions under the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007, the Board of Directors of The Swadeshi 
Industrial Works PLC, acknowledge their responsibility 
in relation to financial reporting of both, the company 
and that of its Group. These responsibilities differ from 
those of its Auditors, M/s. Ernst & Young, which are set 
out in their report, appearing at Page 19 of this Report.

The Directors confirm that the Financial Statements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 
31st March 2023 have been prepared and presented in 
accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 
and they provide the information as required by the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards and the Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange. The Directors confirm that suitable 
accounting policies have been used and applied 
consistently, and applicable and relevant accounting 
standards have been used /followed in the preparation 
of the Financial Statements. The judgements and 
estimates made in the preparation of these Financial 
Statements are reasonable and prudent.

The Directors confirm their responsibility in ensuring 
that all companies within the Group maintain adequate 
accounting records, which are sufficient to prepare 
Financial Statements that disclose with reasonable 
accuracy, the financial position of the Company and its 
Group. They also confirm their responsibility towards 
ensuring that the Financial Statements presented in the 
Annual Report give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company and its Group as at 31st March 
2023, and that of the profit for the year then ended.  The 
Directors have instituted a system of internal control. 
This comprises Internal Audit and a system of financial 
and other controls required to carry on the business 
in an orderly manner, safeguard its assets and secure 
as far as practicable the accuracy and reliability of the 
financial records.

The Financial Statements of the company and the 
Group have been certified by the Head of Finance, the 
personal responsible for its preparation, as required by 
the Act. Financial Statements of the Company and the 
Group have been signed by two Directors on 25th July 
2023 as required by section 150(1) (c) and 152 (1) (c) of 
the Companies Act. Accordingly, the Board of Directors 
wish to confirm that they have complied with all the 
requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 

and have also met all the requirements under section 
7 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
The Directors have adopted the ‘going concern’ basis 
in preparing the Financial Statements and the Directors 
are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources 
to continue in operation.

The Company’s Auditors, M/s. Ernst & Young Chartered 
Accountants have examined the Financial Statements 
together with all financial records and related data and 
express their opinion which appear as reported by them 
at page 19 of this report. In arriving at their opinion, 
they have carried out reviews and sample checks on 
the system of internal controls.

The Directors confirm that to the best of their 
knowledge, all taxes, duties and levies payable by the 
Company, all contributions, levies and taxes payable 
on behalf of and in respect of the Employees of the 
Company and other known statutory dues as were 
due and payable by the Company as at the date of 
the Statement of Financial Position have been paid or 
where necessary provided for, in arriving at the financial 
result for the year under review.
 

...………………………
M, & A Company Secretaries (Private) Limited,
No. 28 (Level 2), W A D
Ramanayake Mawatha, Colombo 2.

25th July 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE SWADESHI INDUSTRIAL WORKS PLC

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC (“the Company”) and the con-
solidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
  
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company and the Group give a true and fair view 
of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of their financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion
  
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by CA 
Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Key audit matters
  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in 
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the 
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

(Contd...2/) 
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Other Information included in the 2023 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our audi-
tor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

(Contd…3/)
  

Our audit procedures included the following:

•	 We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of 
the external valuer engaged by the Group.

•	 We read the external valuer’s report and understood the 
key estimates made and the approach taken by the valuer in 
determining the valuation of each property.

•	 We assessed the reasonableness of the significant judge-
ments, estimates and assumptions  made by the valuer including 
the appropriateness of valuation techniques, per perch price and 
value per square foot.

•   We have also assessed the adequacy of the     disclosures 
made in note 11 to the financial statement.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessment of fair value of land and buildings

As at 31 March 2023, Property, plant and equipment 
include land and buildings carried at fair value.  The fair 
values of land and buildings were determined by an ex-
ternal valuer engaged by the Group.

This was a key audit matter due to: 

•Materiality of the reported land and buildings balances 
amounted to LKR 1.57 Bn and represented 46% of the 
Group’s total assets as of the reporting date.

• The degree of assumptions, judgements and estimation 
uncertainties associated with assessing the fair value of 
land and buildings.

Key areas of significant judgments, estimates and assump-
tions in assessing the fair value of land and buildings, as 
disclosed in Note 11, include.

• per perch price of land
• per square foot value of building
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Responsibilities of the management and those charged with governance  

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to en-
able the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and the Group’s financial report-
ing process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material mis-
statement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the internal controls of the Company and the Group.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
tions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclo-
sures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or busi-
ness activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely respon-
sible for our audit opinion.  

	
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with ethical requirements 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit mat-
ters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information and 
explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper accounting 
records have been kept by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the engagement partner responsible for signing this independent auditor’s 
report is 2440.  

03rd August 2023
Colombo
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 		                          Group		                    Company		
	 Notes	  2023 	  2022 	  2023 	  2022 
		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
							    
		
Revenue	 5	   4,819,400,009 	3,109,816,297 	 4,734,619,077 	 3,014,613,201 
 
	
Cost of Sales		   (2,813,124,895)	 (1,915,072,707)	 (2,813,196,988)	 (1,915,072,707)
							    
		
Gross Profit		   2,006,275,114 	1,194,743,590 	  1,921,422,089 	1,099,540,494 
 
	
Other Operating Income	 6	  14,466,657 	  25,052,765 	  14,408,784 	  25,052,765 
 							    
		
Administrative Expenses		   (605,035,469)	  (419,083,386)	  (601,666,520)	  (416,465,361)
							    
		
Selling and Distribution Expenses		   (1,031,435,938)	  (721,887,251)	  (955,254,121)	  (631,891,318)
							    
		
Operating Profit		   384,270,364 	 78,825,719 	  378,910,232 	  76,236,580 
							    
							    
			 
Finance Cost	 7	  (127,719,790)	 (63,071,185)	  (127,285,726)	  (62,253,215)

							    
Profit Before Tax	 8	  256,550,574 	  15,754,535 	  251,624,506 	  13,983,365 
 
		
Income Tax (Expense) / Reversal	 9	  (57,013,827)	 (11,344,373)	  (54,763,856)	  (10,927,969)
							    
		
Profit for the Year		    199,536,747 	  4,410,162 	  196,860,650 	  3,055,396 
 
							    
		
						    
Attributable to:							    
		
Equity Holders of the parent		    199,547,040 	  4,422,751 
Non-Controlling Interests		   (10,294)	  (12,590)
		   199,536,747 	  4,410,162 
 				  
							    
		
						    
	
Earnings Per Share - Basic	 10	  1,336.26 	  29.62 	  1,318.27 	  20.46 
 
							    
		
The accounting policies and notes on pages 28 through 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.			
						    

Year Ended 31st March 2023

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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Year Ended 31st March 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

				                      Group		                   Company		
			   Notes	  2023 	  2022	  2023	  2022
				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	
Profit for the Year				     199,536,747 	  4,410,162 	  196,860,650 	  3,055,396 
 							     
Other Comprehensive Income	
						    
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to							     
profit or loss in subsequent periods		
	
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Defined Benefit Plan		  19.1	   8,768,941 	 (13,696,353)	  8,768,941 	 (13,696,353)
Income Tax Effect				     -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
				     8,768,941 	 (13,696,353)	  8,768,941 	 (13,696,353)
								      
Revaluation of Land, Building and Plant & Machinery 		  18	   85,337,375 	  174,487,625 	  77,936,375 	 168,888,625 
 Income Tax Effect				     (193,342,904)	 (23,643,150)	 (183,407,717)	  (22,303,600)
				    (108,005,528)	  150,844,475 	 (105,471,341)	  146,585,025 
 Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods				     (99,236,587)	 137,148,122 	  (96,702,400)	  132,888,672 
 	
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year, net of tax		   (99,236,587)	 137,148,122 	  (96,702,400)	  132,888,672 
 							     
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year, Net of Tax		   100,300,158 	  141,558,283 	 100,158,249 	 135,944,068 
							     
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:						    
Equity Holders of the Parent			    	 100,611,767 	  141,064,424 
 Non-Controlling Interests				     (311,609)	 493,859 
				     100,300,158 	 141,558,283 
 				  
								      
	
The accounting policies and notes on pages 28 through 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.		
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As at 31st March 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

				                           Group 	                                     Company 		
		   		  2023 	  2022 	  2023 	  2022 
ASSETS			   Notes	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 
Non-current Assets							     
Property, Plant and Equipment 			   11	  1,698,501,366 	1,629,893,197 	 1,562,501,366 	 1,501,294,197 
Right of Use 			   11	  6,144,167 	  9,971,667 	  6,144,167 	  9,971,667 
Intangible Assets			   12	  5,340,584 	  6,060,584 	  5,340,584 	  6,060,584 
Investments in Subsidiaries			   13	  -   	  -   	  59,594,255 	  60,238,506 
			    	 1,709,986,117 	 1,645,925,447	 1,633,580,372 	 1,577,564,954 
								      
Current Assets								      
Inventories 			   15	   904,430,369 	 665,139,634 	  904,430,369 	 665,139,634 
Trade and Other Receivables			   16	   499,288,980 	  391,329,793 	  472,048,567 	 333,482,096  
Income Tax Receivable				     -   	  683,597 	  -   	  -   
Advances and Prepayments			    	  259,496,893 	  95,927,442 	  259,496,893 	  95,927,442 
Cash and Bank Balances			   21	   31,849,530 	 20,333,533 	  30,116,169 	  16,765,220 
 			    	 1,695,065,772 	1,173,414,000 	 1,666,091,998 	 1,111,314,393 
Total Assets				     3,405,051,889 	 2,819,339,447 	 3,299,672,370 	 2,688,879,346 
								      
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES							     
Equity							     
Stated Capital			   17	   150,634,670 	 150,634,670 	  150,634,670 	  150,634,670 
Retained Earnings				      418,477,181 	 210,310,533 	  396,822,270 	  191,342,012 
Revaluation Reserve			   18	  1,118,035,345 	 1,225,739,558 	 1,034,147,892 	 1,139,619,233 
Equity attributable to Equity holders of the parent			    1,687,147,196 	 1,586,684,761 	 1,581,604,832 	 1,481,595,915 
Non-controlling Interests			    	  11,175,322 	  11,486,931 	  -   	  -   
Total Equity			    	 1,698,322,518 	 1,598,171,693 	 1,581,604,832 	 1,481,595,915 
  								      
Non-current Liabilities							     
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings			   14	   3,272,919 	 10,413,161 	  3,272,919 	  5,273,161 
Deferred Tax Liabilities			   9	   476,916,829 	  301,793,316 	  436,122,092 	  270,933,766 
Retirement Benefit Liability			   19	   43,861,088 	  43,870,822 	  43,861,088 	  43,870,822 
 				      524,050,836 	 356,077,299 	  483,256,099 	  320,077,749 
Current Liabilities 							     
Trade and Other Payables			   20	  556,021,816 	 376,128,816 	 617,284,769 	  411,041,617 
Income Tax Payable				      49,520,124 	  7,549,833 	 45,596,176 	  5,192,260 
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings			   14	   577,136,595 	  481,411,806 	  571,930,494 	  470,971,806 
 				     1,182,678,535 	  865,090,455 	 1,234,811,439 	  887,205,683 
Total Equity and Liabilities			    	 3,405,051,889 	 2,819,339,447 	 3,299,672,370 	 2,688,879,346 
 
	
I certify that these Financial Statements are in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.		
					   
								      
	
           ……………………………								      
                Head of Finance								      
								      
		
The Board of Directors is responsible for these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf of the Board by;			 
						    
							     

           …………………………..					    ……………………………… 		
                     Director					         Director 		
							     
The accounting policies and notes on pages 28 through 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.	 	
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended 31st March 2023

 Group 			                 Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 				  
			   Stated	 Revaluation	 Retained	 Non controlling 	 Total
			   Capital	 Reserve	 Earnings	  Interest 	
		  Notes	 Rs. 	 Rs.	 Rs.	  Rs. 	 Rs.

Balance as at 01 April 2021			   150,634,670 	 1,075,401,532 	 219,733,468 	  10,993,073 	 1,456,762,743 
				  
Profit for the Year			    -   	  -   	 4,422,751 	  (12,590)	  4,410,161 
				  
Other Comprehensive Income			   -   	  150,338,026 	  (13,696,353)	  506,449 	  137,148,122 
									       
Disposal of Revalued assets 			    -   	  -   	  -   	  -   		  -   	
			 
Dividends			    -   	  -   	  (149,333)	  -   	  (149,333)
				  
Balance as at 31 March 2022			    150,634,670 	 1,225,739,558 	 210,310,533 	  11,486,931 	 1,598,171,693 
									       
Profit for the Year			     -   	  -   	 199,547,040 	  (10,294)	  199,536,746 
 				  
Other Comprehensive Income		  18	  -   	(107,704,214)	  8,768,941 	  (301,315)	  (99,236,587)
				  
Disposal of Revalued assets 			    -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	
				  
Dividends			    -   	  -   	  (149,333)   	  -   	 (149,333)   
				  
Balance as at 31 March 2023			    150,634,670 	 1,118,035,345 	  418,477,181 	  11,175,322 	 1,698,322,517 
 
 
Company 				    Stated	 Revaluation	  Retained 	 Total
				    Capital	 Reserve	  Earnings 			 
			    	 Rs. 	 Rs.	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Balance as at 01 April 2021				    150,634,670 	 993,034,209 	202,132,302 	 1,345,801,180 
									       
Profit for the Year				     -   	  -   	  3,055,396 	  3,055,396 
				  
Other Comprehensive Income		  18		   -   	 146,585,025 	 (13,696,353)	  132,888,672 
				  
Disposal of Revalued assets 				     -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
									       
Dividends				     -   	  -   	  (149,333)	  (149,333)
				  
Balance as at 31 March 2022				     150,634,670	 1,139,619,233	 191,342,012	1,481,595,915 
									       
Profit for the Year				     -   	  - 	   196,860,650 	 196,860,650 
 									       
Right Issue				     	 -   	  -   	  - 
									       
Other Comprehensive Income		  18		   -   	 (105,471,341)	  8,768,941 	  (96,702,400)
									       
Disposal of Revalued assets 				     -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
				  
Dividend				      -   	 -   	  (149,333)	  (149,333)
				  
Balance as at 31 March 2023				     150,634,670 	 1,034,147,892 	 396,822,270 	 1,581,604,832 
 									       
									       
		
The accounting policies and notes on pages 28 through 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.		  	
								      
									       
				  



27Annual Report 2022 - 2023
The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC

		                             Group		                     Company		
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
Cash Flows From Operating Activities	 Notes	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
		
Profit before Income Tax Expense 		   256,550,574 	  15,754,535 	  251,624,506 	  13,983,365 
Adjustments for						            	
Depreciation	 11	  26,945,011 	  23,774,205 	 26,945,011 	  23,774,205 
Amortization	 12	  720,000 	  720,000 	  720,000 	  720,000 
Exchange gains		  -	 -	 -	 -  
Bad Debt Provision Reversal/Charged	 6	 -	  (121,834)	  -   	  (121,834)
Bad Debt		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Loss / (Profit) on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment		   -   	  -   	  -  	  -   
Finance Costs	 7	  127,719,790 	  63,071,185 	  127,285,726 	  62,253,215 
Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries	 6.1	  -   	  -   	  644,251 	  620,611 
Provision for Retirement Benefit Liability		   9,936,001	 6,348,824 	   9,936,001 	 6,348,824 
Provision for Slow Moving Inventories		   16,510,110 	  11,526,315 	  16,510,110 	  11,526,315 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes		    438,381,486 	  121,073,230 	  433,665,605 	 119,104,702 
 
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories 		    (255,800,845)	 (146,744,639)	 (255,800,845)	 (146,744,639)
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and Other Receivables 		   (107,959,187)	  (28,070,949)	  (138,566,471)	  (24,033,548)
Decrease / (Increase) in Advances and Prepayments		   (163,569,451)	 5,567,020 	  (163,569,451)	  5,567,020 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 		   179,892,998 	  99,737,937 	  206,243,152 	  83,921,469 
Cash Generated from Operations		   90,945,001 	 51,562,599 	  81,971,990 	  37,815,003 
 							    
Finance Costs Paid	 7	   (127,719,790)	  (63,071,185)	  (127,285,726)	  (62,253,215)
Defined Benefit Plan Costs Paid	 19.1	  (1,176,794)	 (2,810,748)	  (1,176,794)	  (2,810,748)
Income Tax Paid		   (32,579,330)	  (9,104,666)	  (32,579,330)	  (8,018,185)
Net Cash from / Used in Operating Activities		   (70,530,913)	  (23,424,000)	  (79,069,860)	  (35,267,145)
		
Cash Flows from / (Used in) Investing Activities							    
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 	 11	   (6,388,305)	  (35,607,852)	  (6,388,305)	  (35,607,852)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets	 12	  -	  (4,480,583)	 --	  (4,480,583)
Net Cash Flows (Used in) / from Investing Activities		   (6,388,305)	  (40,088,435)	  (6,388,305)	  (40,088,435)
							    
Cash Flows from / (Used in) Financing Activities							    
Proceeds From Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings	 14	  1,644,178,120 	 1,456,996,714 	 1,644,178,120 	 1,456,996,714 
Repayment of Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings	 14	  (1,625,652,398)	 (1,409,195,875)	 (1,615,278,498)(1,399,775,875)
Principal Payment under Lease Liabilities	 23	   (1,824,166)	  (2,404,619)	  (1,824,166)      	 (2,404,619)
Dividend Paid		  (149,333)   	  (149,333)	 (149,333)   	  (149,333
Net Cash Flows from /(Used in) Financing Activities		   16,552,223 	  45,246,886 	  26,926,123 	  54,666,886 
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents		   (60,366,994)	  (18,265,549)	  (58,532,042)	  (20,688,694)
							    
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 	 21	  (76,889,825)	  (58,624,276)	  (80,458,138)	  (59,769,444)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 	 21	  (137,256,819)	  (76,889,825)	  (138,990,180)	 (80,458,138)
							    
The accounting policies and notes on pages 28 through 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.		 	
					   
							    
		

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended 31st March 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

1.	 REPORTING ENTITY 

The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC is a Company incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The ordinary shares of 
the company are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange of Sri Lanka. 
 
The registered office and the principal place of business both are located at No. 57, Colombo Road, Kandana.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 comprise “The Company” 
referring to The Swadeshi Industrial 	 Works PLC as the holding company and “The Group: referring to the com-
panies whose accounts have been consolidated therein.

Principal Business Activities, Nature of operations of the group and ownership by the parent Company in its Sub-
sidiaries							    

The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC -	 The Company carries the manufacturing and selling of toilet soap, laundry 
soaps, detergents and personal care products
	
Subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include:

						    
					                                                                                                                                                 	
				                           % of Equity Interest  
Name	 Principal Activity 	                  County of Incorporation              	 2023	 2022 	
The Swadeshi	 Directly selling products              Sri Lanka 		  99.99            	99.99   
Chemicals (Pvt) Ltd. 	 manufactured by The	
                                 	 Swadeshi Industrial Works 
	 PLC to the Institutional 
	 Customers.

Ceylon Plastics Ltd.	 Dormant Company                       Sri Lanka		  88.11	 88.11

The Swadesh	 Dormant Company                       Sri Lanka		  100.00	 100.00
Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.  	
 

Ultimate Parent Entity 

The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC, does not have an identifiable parent of its own.  Swadeshi Industrial works PLC 
is the ultimate parent of the Group.



29Annual Report 2022 - 2023
The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1	 Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting and
Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 1995, which requires compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS’s 
and LKAS’s) promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL), and with the requirements 
of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. 

	The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 25 July 2023.

2.2	 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statement of the Company and the Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 
the land & buildings and plant machineries stated at revalued amounts (Note 12.3). Retirement benefits obligations 
are measured at the present value of the defined benefit plans as explained in the respective notes to the Financial 
Statements

No adjustments have been made for inflationary factors in the consolidated financial statements. 

2.3	 Going Concern 
 
		 The Directors have made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied 	
		 that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware 
		 of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
  
		 Management has assessed the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern with considered the potential
		 negative impact that the current economic conditions could bring to the business operation of the Group.  Group will 
		 be able to maintain operations Healthy with profitable and strong liquidity position under current economic crisis and the
		 circumstances surrounding volatility of the external environment, availability of stable external funding sources,
		 defensive cashflows and the initiatives taken to strengthen risk monitoring,  the Management
		 is satisfied that the going concern basis is appropriate.

		 The Board believes that the Group has the adequate financial strength, resources, and business plans to continue to 
		 operate the business as a going concern for the foreseeable future by mitigating the risks arising from the current 
		 economic conditions. Therefore, the Board is of the view that the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
		 2023 should be prepared and presented as a going concern.

2.4	 Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in 
the previous year. The presentation and classification of the financial statements of the previous years have been 
amended, where relevant for better presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year. However such 
re-classifications did not change the net profit or the retained earnings of the prior year.	  	  

2.5	 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Items of a dis-
similar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

3.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1	 Basis of Consolidation 

The Group’s Financial Statements at 31st March 2023 comprise, Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
and its Subsidiaries in terms of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – SLFRS 10 on ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, 
and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. 

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company using 
consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from 
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

3.1.2	 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights 
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the entity. The Financial Statements of Subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
from the date on which control commences until the date when control ceases. 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption 
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has the power over an investee.

3.1.3   	 Non-Controlling Interests (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date.

Subsequently, profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income are attributed to equity holders 
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests 
having a deficit balance.

3.1.4	 Loss of Control

When the Group losses control over subsidiary derecognises the assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary, any 
non-controlling interests and other components of equity. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is 
recognised in the Profit or Loss. Any interest retains in the previous Subsidiary, is measured at fair value as at the 
date that control is lost.

3.1.5 	 Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transac-
tions are eliminated in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions 
with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the 
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is 
no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

3.2       Assets and Bases of their Valuation

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification. 
An asset as current when it is: 

•	  	Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
•	  	Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
•	  	Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period  or 
•	  	Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
		  months after the reporting period.  

All other assets are classified as non-current.
 
A liability is current when: 

•	  	 it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
•	  	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
•	  	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or 
•	  	There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 	
		  reporting period 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

3.3	 Fair value measurement

The Group measures land & Building and plant & machineries at fair value. Fair value related disclosures for financial 
and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value are summarised in the following notes:

-- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy 	 Note 11.3
-- Land & Building and Plant & Machinery at revaluation model	 Note 11.3                          

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability
		  Or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate eco-
nomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would 
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
.
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Year Ended 31st March 2023

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Financial Statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.4	 Foreign Currency Translations

The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lanka Rupees (Rs), which is the functional and 
presentation currency of the Group. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at the functional currency rates prevailing at 
the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate 
of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

All differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss. 

3.5	 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. 
The following specific criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of revenue. 

SLFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances 
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting 
for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. 

In determining the transaction price for the revenue contracts, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, 
the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration to the customer (if any).
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Variable Consideration     

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to 
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated 
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of 
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is 
subsequently resolved. 

In relation to the contracts with the distributors, modern traders for the sale of products, the Group considered the 
upfront discounts, rights of return and the consideration payable to the customer in determining the transaction price. 
Revenue is recognised by reducing the above component from the transaction price.

Evaluation of point of transfer of control of goods or services to the customer under revenue recognition

The following factors were considered in determining the point of transfer of control to the customer.

• The entity has a present right to payment for the asset.   
• The customer has legal title to the asset.     
• The entity has transferred physical possession of the asset. 
• The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
 • The customer has accepted the asset.

Whilst the above indicators assist in the determination of transfer of control, none of the indicators above are meant 
to individually determine whether control has been transferred. Further not all of them must be present. Hence the 
above evaluation requires significant judgement

Goods transferred at a point in time    
 
Under SLFRS 15, revenue is recognised upon satisfaction of performance obligation. The revenue recognition oc-
curs at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. 

Interest

Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis that takes in to account the effective interest rate on asset.
	
Others

Other Operating Income is recognized on an accrual basis

3.6	 Taxation

Current Income Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of 
profit or loss Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

•	 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or 
loss.

•	 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

•	 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

•	 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries deferred tax assets are 
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future 
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that 
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the report-
ing date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items 
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that 
date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances changed. 

Tax withheld on dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Income State-
ment at the same time as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.



35Annual Report 2022 - 2023
The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

3.7	 Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group applies the requirements of LKAS 16 on ‘Property Plant and Equipment’ in accounting for its owned
assets which are held for and use in the provision of the services and for administration purpose and are expected 
to be used for more than one year.

Basis of Recognition

Property Plant and Equipment is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the assets 
will flow to the Group and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Basis of measurement

Items of Property, Plant & Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impair-
ment losses, if any, except for;

- land & buildings which is measured at revalued amount less accumulated impairment losses, if any,
   and 
- plant and machineries which is measured at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any (Note 12.3).

Owned assets

The cost of Property, Plant & Equipment includes expenditure that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and remov-
ing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and borrowing costs on qualifying assets. Purchased 
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as a part of that equipment. 

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them 
separately based on their specific useful lives.

Revaluation of land & building and plant & machinery is done with sufficient frequency to ensure that the fair value 
of the land & building and plant & machinery does not differ materially from its carrying amount, and is undertaken 
by professionally qualified valuers. 

Any revaluation surplus is recorded in Other Comprehensive Income and credited to the asset revaluation reserve 
in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in the 
Statement of profit or loss, in which case, the increase is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss. A revaluation 
deficit is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the 
same asset recognised in the asset revaluation reserve. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular 
asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.
	
	
Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised in accordance with the 
derecognition policy given below. 

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.
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De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal; or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on derecognition are recognised in statement of in-
come and gains are not classified as revenue.  When revalued assets are sold, any related amount included in the 
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings	 20 Years
Plant and Machinery	 5-10 Years
Motor Vehicles	 04    Years
Furniture & Fittings and Office Equipments	 08    Years

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the dates on which the asset 
is classified as held for sale or is derecognized. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The asset’s residual values, useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.8	 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee 

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and 
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets 

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset 
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of 
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of 
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows.

Motor Vehicle	 04    Years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise 
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets 
are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 3.1.3- Impairment of non-financial assets.



37Annual Report 2022 - 2023
The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

(b) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance 
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and 
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price 
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating 
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do 
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the 
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease com-
mencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement 
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments 
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease 
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate 
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.  

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a 
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies 
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.9	 Intangible assets

Basis of Recognition

An Intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the assets will flow to 
the Group and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Basis of measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The costs of intangible assets acquired 
in a business combination are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure 
is reflected in the Statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Amortizing 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. The estimated useful lives of
intangible assets with finite lives are as follows.

Asset class   	 Useful life
Computer software	 5 years
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method 
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes 
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement 
of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

De-recognition of Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains 
or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset 
is derecognised.

3.10	 Borrowing Costs
	
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent where 
borrowing cost that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of that asset.
	
	

3.11	 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowances for obsolete and 
slow-moving items. Net realisable value is the price at which inventories can be sold in the ordinary course of busi-
ness less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and conditions are accounted using the following 
cost formula: -
	
Raw Materials			   -	 At Weighted average cost
Finished Goods and Work-in-progress	 -	 At the cost of direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate pro
						      portion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 
						      capacity, but excluding Borrowing Costs.
Consumables and Spares 		  -	 At Weighted Average Cost

	
3.12	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments, 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3.13	 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indica-
tion exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s (Cash Generating Unit) fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre–tax discount rate that reflects current market as-
sessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. 

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recog-
nised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimate 
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, 
nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss.

Financial Instruments — Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

i)	 Financial Assets

	 Initial Recognition and Measurement
	
Financial assets are recognized at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value through profit or loss.
						    
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow char-
acteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivable that do not 
contain significant financing component for which Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially 
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not a fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs. Trade receivable that do not contain a significant financing component for which the Group has 
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under SLFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI it needs to give 
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding. 

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages financial assets in order to gener-
ate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows 
selling the financial assets or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of financial assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits 
to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include trade and other receivables.
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Subsequent Measurement							     

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i.	 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
ii.	 Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
iii. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon     
	   de-recognition (equity instruments)
iv. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

 	 The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

•	The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and
•	The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject 
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s statement of financial position) when:

•	The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired Or
•	The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement- and either 
	 (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
	 (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
	 transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- through 
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, 
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on 
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required 
to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value 
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with 
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit 
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the 
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers financial asset is default when contractual payments are 365 days due. However, in certain 
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates 
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit 
enhancements held by the Group.

ii)	Financial Liabilities
	
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans 
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts and interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings.

Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated 
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by SLFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial 
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in SLFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss 
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This 
category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

iii) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Management assessed that the fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and 
other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

3.14	 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision 
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually 
certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

3.15	 Capital commitments and contingencies

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group are disclosed in the respective Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

3.16	 Stated capital

The stated capital of the Company, consisting of 149,333 ordinary shares amounting to Rs. 150,634,670/- as at the 
reporting date.

3.17	 Retirement Benefit Obligations

(i)	 Defined Benefit Plans – Gratuity

The Group is liable to pay gratuity in terms of the Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983.

The Group measures the present value of the promised retirement benefits of gratuity, which is a defined benefit 
plan with the advice of an independent actuary.

For the purpose of determining the charge for any period before the next regular actuarial valuation falls due, an 
approximate estimation provided by the qualified actuary is used.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding net interest (not applicable to the Group), are 
recognized immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earn-
ings through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Group recognises the 
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘administration expenses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss:

-	 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements 
-	 Net interest expense or income

The gratuity liability is not externally funded. This item is stated under Defined Benefit Obligations in the Statement 
of Financial Position.
								      
Recognition of Actuarial Losses / Gains

Actuarial gains & losses are recognized in full in other comprehensive income.

Funding Arrangements
	
The Gratuity liability is not externally funded. 

(ii) Defined contribution plan

The Group also operates a defined contribution plan. The contribution payable to a defined contribution plan is in 
proportion to the services rendered to the Group by the employees and is recorded as an expense in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability. 

The Group contributes to the following Schemes:

-	 Employees’ Provident Fund 

The Group and employees contribute 12% and 8% respectively of the employee’s monthly gross salary (excluding 
overtime) to the Provident Fund. 

-	 Employees’ Trust Fund 

The Group contributes 3% of the employee’s monthly gross salary excluding overtime to the Employees’ Trust Fund 
maintained by the Employees Trust Fund Board.

3.18	 Cash Flow Statement

The Cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method, as stipulated in LKAS 7- “Statement of Cash Flows”. 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at bank, bank overdrafts and Investments with short
maturities i.e. three months or less from the date of acquisition are also treated as cash equivalents.

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with SLFRS/LKAS’s requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions 
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 
affected in future periods.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023
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Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available 
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Measurement of the defined benefit obligations  

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments 
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The 
mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Future salary increases and pension increases are based 
on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are given in Note 19 which includes the assumptions used in the 
measurement of the obligation and the sensitivity change in such assumptions to the value of the obligation.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

The Group carries its land & building and plant & machinery at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised 
in other comprehensive income. As disclosed in note 11.3, the Group engaged an independent valuation specialist 
to assess fair value of Plant & Machinery as at 31 March 2021. Land & Building was valued by reference to market-
based evidence, using comparable prices as at 31 March 2023. Plant and Machinery were valued by reference to 
replacement cost of each component/part of the Plant and Machineries adjusted for specific nature of the Plant and 
Machinery of the Group as at 31 March 2021

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

For trade receivables the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not 
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. 

Impairment of inventories

The Group reviews the adequacy of the provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory provision through as-
sessment of the condition of inventories based on the periodic inventory counts and expectations of future sales. 

4.1      Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of 
the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards 
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective. Adoption of these amendments and interpretations 
will not have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023
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(i)	 Amendments to LKAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as 
current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

	 • What is meant by a right to defer settlement

	 • That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

	 • That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

	 • That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a 
	   liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to LKAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to LKAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements, provides guidance and ex-
amples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help 
entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by:  

•	Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to 
disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies
•	Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy 
disclosures

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to LKAS 12

The amendments clarify that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax purposes, it is a matter of 
judgement (having considered the applicable tax law) whether such deductions are attributable for tax purposes 
to the liability recognised in the financial statements (and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and 
interest expense). This judgement is important in determining whether any temporary differences exist on initial 
recognition of the asset and liability.

Also, under the amendments, the initial recognition exception does not apply to transactions that, on initial recog-
nition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. It only applies if the recognition of a lease 
asset and lease liability (or decommissioning liability and decommissioning asset component) give rise to taxable 
and deductible temporary differences that are not equal.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

(iv) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to LKAS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting poli-
cies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop 
accounting estimates. The amended standard clarifies that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an 
input or a change in a measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the 
correction of prior period errors.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5.	 REVENUE				                          Group		                    Company		
					      2023 	  2022 	  2023 	  2022 
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	
	 Summary								      
	 Gross Revenue				     5,482,912,341 	 3,385,711,246 	 5,359,301,747 	  3,255,501,405 
	 Less:  Value Added Tax				     (663,512,333)	 (275,894,949)	  (624,682,671)	  (240,888,205)
          NBT				     -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Net Revenue  (Note 5.1)			    	 4,819,400,009 	 3,109,816,297 	 4,734,619,077 	  3,014,613,201 
									       
5.1	Net Revenue								      
	 Local			    	 4,806,090,059 	 3,106,514,352 	 4,721,309,127 	  3,011,311,256 
	 Exports				     13,309,950 	  3,301,945 	 13,309,950 	  3,301,945 
					      4,819,400,009 	 3,109,816,297 	 4,734,619,077 	  3,014,613,201 
	
6.	 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS	

				                           Group		                    Company		
					     2023 	  2022 	  2023 	  2022 
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs
	 Sale of Scraps				     2,230,437 	  24,930,931 	  2,230,437 	  24,930,931 
	 Exchange Gain 				     12,178,347 	  -   	  12,178,347 	  -   
	 Reversal of provision for Impairment				     57,873   	  121,834 	  -  	  121,834 
					      14,466,657 	  25,052,765 	  14,408,784 	  25,052,765 
									       
7.	 FINANCE COST				                          Group		                    Company		
				     	 2023 	  2022 	  2023 	  2022 
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Interest Expense on  Loans and Borrowings 			    127,138,316 	 25,835,103 	  126,704,252 	  25,017,133 
	 Finance Charges on Lease Liabilities				     581,474 	  741,029 	  581,474 	 741,029 
	 Exchange loss				     -   	 36,495,053 		  36,495,053
					      127,719,790 	 63,071,185 	  127,285,726 	  62,253,215 
									       
8.	 PROFIT BEFORE TAX				                          Group		                     Company	 	
	 Stated after Charging 				     2023 	  2022 	  2023 	  2022 
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Included in Cost of Sales								      
	 Employees Benefits including the following 			     100,899,151 	 92,488,835 	  100,899,151 	  92,488,835 
 	 - Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF and ETF 			     3,662,525 	 3,565,656 	  3,662,525 	  3,565,656 
 	 Depreciation 				       17,698,394	 15,204,292 	   17,698,394	  15,204,292 
 
									       
	 Included in Administrative Expenses 								      
	 Employees Benefits including the following 			    226,372,670 	 192,698,783 	 226,372,670 	  192,698,783 
	 - Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity				      9,936,001	 6,211,324 	   9,936,001 	 6,211,324 
	 - Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF and ETF 			    13,008,332 	  14,202,450 	 13,008,332 	  14,202,450 
	 Depreciation 			    	 9,246,617 	 8,569,913 	 9,246,617 	  8,569,913 
	 Audit Fees				     2,018,518 	 2,100,094 	  1,600,000 	  1,681,576 
	 Legal Expenses				     10,022,927 	  20,079,470 	  9,697,927 	  19,754,470 
	 Professional Charges				     23,709,581 	  22,048,080 	  22,821,936 	  21,160,435 
									       
	 Included in Selling and Distribution Costs							     
	 Employees Benefits including the following 			    110,176,873 	 91,997,007 	  105,491,789 	  87,311,924 
	 - Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF and ETF 			    6,186,516 	 3,932,927 	  6,186,516 	  3,932,927 
	 Transport Costs 			    	 140,578,826 	  94,114,706 	  139,598,639 	  93,134,519 
	 Advertising Cost				     185,334,427 	  104,409,581 	  183,246,236 	  102,321,389 
	 Sales Promotion			    	 255,281,489 	  165,031,393 	  183,841,393 	  93,591,297 
	 Travelling and Bata Allowance			    	 29,481,680 	  22,569,236 	  25,535,989 	  18,623,544 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

9.	 INCOME TAX 									      
	 The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 are as follows :					  
	 Statement of Profit or Loss				                   Group		                 Company		
					     2023 	 2022 	  2023 	  2022 
9.1	 Current Income Tax				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Current Income Tax charge (Note 9.2)			   74,575,452 	 7,092,003 	 72,325,480 	  6,675,599 
	 (Over) / Under Provision of current taxes in respect of prior years		   657,766 	  (250,763)	 657,766 	  (250,763)
	 Deferred Income Tax									      
	 Deferred Taxation Charge/(Reversal) (Note 9.3/Note 9.4)			  (18,219,390)	 4,503,133 	 (18,219,390)	 4,503,133 
	 Income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss		  57,013,828 	11,344,373 	 54,763,856 	 10,927,969 
										       
9.2	 A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows:			
					                    Group		                  Company		
					     2023 	 2022 	 2023 	 2022 
					     Rs.	 Rs.	  Rs. 	 Rs.
	 Accounting Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  			   256,943,954 	  15,754,535 	 251,624,506 	  13,983,365 
	 Deductible Expenses				    (22,254,532)	 (38,302,636)	 (26,309,967)	 (34,711,758)
	 Non Deductible Expenses 				    82,490,815 	  61,847,685 	  82,490,815 	  57,722,351 
	 Profit from Business				    317,180,237 	 39,299,584	 307,805,354	 36,993,958 
	 Interest Income				     -   	  -   	 -   	  -   
	 Total Statutory Income				    317,180,237 	 39,299,584 	 307,805,354 	  36,993,958 
	 Tax Loss Utilised During the Year				     -   	  -   	  -   	 -   
	 Taxable Profit				    317,180,237 	 39,299,584 	307,805,354 	  36,993,958 
	 Income Tax - 14%				    60,193 	  5,626 	  60,193 	  5,626 
	 Income Tax - 24% 				     8,033,257 	  489,580 	  5,783,285 	  73,177 
	 Income Tax - 18%				     27,752,270 	 6,596,797 	  27,752,270 	  6,596,797 
	 Income Tax - 30%				     38,729,732 		   38,729,732 		
	 Income Tax Expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss		  74,575,452 	  7,092,003 	  72,325,480 	  6,675,599 
			 
9.3	 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax relates to the followings - Group
					   
		                  	“Statement of Financial Position”            	Statement of 		               Statement of Other			
			                                      	     Profit or Loss            Comprehensive income
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
			   Rs.	 Rs.	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Deferred Tax Liability									      
	 Property, Plant and Equipment 		   (31,354,449)	  (40,925,112)	  (9,570,663)	  7,820,531 	  -   	 -   
	 Capital Allowances for Tax Purposes 						    
	 Directly Charged to Equity			    	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Tax on Revaluation of Assets		   (464,242,299)	 (270,899,755)	  -   	  -	193,342,544	 23,643,150 
	 Right of use Asset		   (261,302)	  (517,381)	 (256,079)	  (389,504)
			   (495,858,050)	 (312,342,248)						   
	 Deferred Tax Assets 									      
	 Retirement Benefit Obligation		   13,158,326 	  7,896,748 	  (5,261,578)	 (3,102,197)	  -   	  -   
	 Carried Forward Tax Losses		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   				 
	 Provision for Slow moving inventory 	  4,953,033 	  2,079,763 	 (2,873,270)	  152,374 				 
	 Provision for Bad Debts 		   830,222 	  572,421 	  (257,801)	  21,930 	  -   	 -   
		   	 18,941,581 	  10,548,932 						   
	 Charge/(Reversal) of Deferred Tax				    (18,219,390)	 4,503,134 	 193,342,544 	23,643,150 
	 Net Deferred Tax Liability 		   (476,916,469)	 (301,793,316)	  					  
			 
9.3.1	 Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Charge / (Reversal) - Group								     
					      		  2023 	  2022 
							        Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Deferred Tax Liability as at 01 April					     301,793,315 	  273,647,032 
	 Deferred Tax Charge/(Reversal) reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss			    	(18,219,390)	  4,503,133 
	 Deferred Tax Charge/(Reversal) reported in Other Comprehensive Income 			 
	 - Tax Effect of Actuarial Gain/Loss						       -	 -   
	 - Tax Effect of Asset Revaluation						      193,342,544 	  23,643,150 
	 Deferred Tax Liability as 31 March 					     	476,916,468 	  301,793,315 

9.3.2	 Reconciliation of Deferred Tax ( Charge )/ Reversal - Group								    
							       2023	 2022
							        Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 deferred Tax (Charge)/Reversal On Other Temporary Differences Recognised Under Profit or Loss		  (38,815,097)	  4,503,133 
	 Deferred tax effects from changes in tax rate recognized under Profit or Loss 			    20,595,707 	 -   
	 deferred Tax (Charge)/Reversal On Other Temporary
	 Differences Recognised Under Other comprehensive income 				     25,600,853 	  23,643,150 
	 Deferred tax effects from changes in tax rate recognized under Other Comprehensive income 		  167,741,691 	  -   
							       175,123,154 	  28,146,283 
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Year Ended 31st March 2023

9.	 INCOME TAX  (Contd…)

9.3.3	 Tax Losses									      
					                    Group		                  Company			
				     	 2023 	  2022 	 2023 	 2022 
					      Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Tax Loss Brought Forward				    5,305,301 	 6,385,219 	  -   	  -   
	 Tax Loss Incurred During the Year				     1,211,371 	 573,372 	  -   	 -   
	 Adjustments relating to previous Year			    1,526,160 	 (1,653,290)	  -   	 -   
	 Tax Losses Utilized During the Year			    -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Tax Losses Carried Forward				     8,042,832 	  5,305,301 	  -   	  -   
			 
	 The carried forward tax losses of the Group amounting to Rs.8,042,832/- (2022 - Rs 5,305,301/-) is available for 5 years for offset 
	 against future statutory income of the Group, However deferred tax asset has not been recognized on the said carried forward 
	 tax losses as the Group is unable to assess with reasonable certainty that the taxable profit would be available to recover the asset 
	 in the foreseeable future.									      
			 
9.4	 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax relates to the followings - Company					   
					   
		                  	Statement of Financial Position            	Statement of 		            Statement of Other			
			                                      	  Profit or Loss            Comprehensive income
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
			   Rs.	 Rs.	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Deferred Tax Liability									      
	 Property, Plant and Equipment 	  	  (31,354,449)	 (40,925,112)	  (9,570,663)	 7,820,531 	  -   	 -   
	 Tax Effect of Asset Revaluation		   (423,447,922)	 (240,040,205)		  -	 183,407,717	 22,303,600
	 Right of use Asset		   (261,302)	  (517,381)	  (256,079)	  (389,504)
			    (455,063,673)	 (281,482,698)
	 Deferred Tax Assets 									      
	 Retirement Benefit Obligation 		    13,158,326 	 7,896,748 	  (5,261,578)	 (3,102,197)	  -   	  -   
  	 Carried Forward Tax Losses		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Provision for Slow moving inventory 	  4,953,033 	  2,079,763 	  (2,873,270)	  152,374 	  -   	  -   
   	 Provision for Bad Debts 	  	  830,222 	  572,421 	  (257,801)	  21,930 	  -   	  -   
  	  		   18,941,581 	 10,548,932 
	 Charge/(Reversal) of Deferred Tax				     (18,219,390)	  4,503,134 	 183,407,717 	 22,303,600 
 	 Net Deferred Tax Liability	  	  (436,122,092)	 (270,933,766)
								      
9.4.1	 Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Charge / (Reversal)					     2023	 2022
							        Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Deferred Tax Liability as 01 April						      270,933,766 	  244,127,032 
	 Deferred Tax Charge reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss				     (18,219,390)	 4,503,133 
 	 Deferred Tax Charge reported in Other Comprehensive Income    					     -
			  - Tax Effect of Asset Revaluation				     183,407,717 	 22,303,600 
 	 Deferred Tax Liability as 31 March						       436,122,092 	 270,933,766 
	 Deferred tax was established at average effective income tax rate of 30% ( 2022 - 18%)						   
									       
9.4.2	 Reconciliation of Defferred Tax ( Charge )/ Reversal - Company				    2023	 2022
							        Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Defferred Tax (Charge)/Reversal On Other Temporary Differences Recognised Under Profit or Loss		   (38,815,097)	  4,503,133 
 	 Deferred tax effects from changes in tax rate recognized under Profit or Loss 			    20,595,707 	  -   
  	 Defferred Tax (Charge)/Reversal On Other Temporary Differences Recognised Under
	 Other comprehensive income 						       23,380,913 	 22,303,600 
	 Deferred tax effects from changes in tax rate recognized under Othrt Comprehensive income 		  160,026,804 	  -   
							       165,188,326 	 26,806,734 
 10.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE									      
		
10.1	 Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 
	 the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.  						   
							     
10.2	 The following reflects the income and share data used in the Basic Earnings Per Share computation.	 				 
						    
					                     Group 	                              Company 		
					     2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	 Amount Used as the Numerator:				     Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent			    199,547,040 	4,422,751 	 196,860,650 	  3,055,396 

							       2023	 2022
	 Number of Ordinary Shares Used as Denominator:					     Number	 Number
	 Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares in issue				  
	 applicable to Basic Earnings Per Share					      149,333 	  149,333 
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11.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - (Contd….)					   
							     
							     
11.3.1	The fair value of Plant and Machinery was determined by means of a revaluation during the financial year 2021 by Mr. Sunil 
	 Wickramarachchi, an independent valuer.The results of such revaluation were incorporated to the financial statements from its 
	 effective date which was 31 March 2021. The surplus arising from the revaluation net of differed taxes, was transferred to a revaluation 
	 reserve.									      
									       
								      

										       
	 Class of Asset		  Date of valuation                Valuer	      	  Revalued		 Fair value measurement Basis 	
					            Amount (Rs.)	       	and Sensitivity of Inputs
	 	Plant and Machineries         31 March 2021 	    Mr.Sunil Wickramaarachchi       120,273,834

11.3.2	 Significant Assumptions Used by Valuer are as follows							    
			   			 
			   2021	 2018						   
	 Manufacturing Capacity		  500 Kg - 1500 Kg	 500 Kg - 1500 Kg						   
	 Estimated Balance life period 	 5- 10 Years	 3- 15 Years						   
		
 
										       
	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

Level 03 Measurements-  Significant
unobservable inputs (Replacement 
Cost). The valuer has considered the 
replacement cost of each component/
part of the plant and machineries of the 
Group/Company. Significant increase/
decrease in replacement cost of each 
component/part of the machineries 
would result in higher/lower fair value 
of machineries.	
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11.4	 The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the financial statements of the Group/Company 
	 had the assets been carried at cost less depreciation is as follow:						   
				    					  
									      
							     
	 Class of Asset	  		  Cost 	 Cumulative	  Net Carrying 	 Net Carrying 
					     Depreciation 	  Amount 	  Amount 
					     if Assets were 	  2023 	  2022 
					    Carried at Cost				 
				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Group								     
	 Land			    5,531,928 	  -   	 5,531,928 	  5,531,928 
 	 Building 			     66,655,613 	 53,851,151 	  12,804,462 	  16,137,243 
 	 Plant and Machineries			     138,510,762 	  56,048,091 	  82,462,671 	  96,313,747 
 				      210,698,303 	 109,899,242 	 100,799,061 	 117,982,918 
 

	 Company								     
	 Land			    5,514,385 	  -   	  5,514,385 	 5,514,385 
 	 Building 			    66,655,613 	 53,851,151 	 12,804,462 	  16,137,243 
 	 Plant and Machineries			     138,510,762 	 56,048,091 	 82,462,671 	  96,313,747 
 			    	  210,680,760 	 109,899,242 	 100,781,518 	 117,965,375 
 
									      
				                             Group	                                    Company
12.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS			    2023	  2022 	  2023	  2022 
				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
12.1	 Cost 								     
	 As at 1 April 			    15,915,436 	 11,434,853 	 15,915,436 	  11,434,853 
 	 Acquired during the year			     - 	 4,480,583 	  - 	  4,480,583 
	 As at 31 March 			    15,915,436 	 15,915,436 	 15,915,436 	  15,915,436 

 
12.2	 Accumulated Amortization								     
								      
	
	 As at 1 April 			    9,854,853 	  9,134,853 	  9,854,853 	  9,134,853 
	 Amortization  for the year 			    720,000 	  720,000 	  720,000 	  720,000 
	 As at 31 March 			    10,574,853 	  9,854,853 	 10,574,853 	  9,854,853 
 
12.3	 Net book value	  		   5,340,584 	  6,060,584 	  5,340,584	 6,060,584 
 
									      
						    
12.4	 Intangible assets include computer software with an estimated useful life of 05 Years. 					  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

13.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES  - Company						    
								      
					     2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	 Non-Quoted				                     Percentage of Holding	 Rs.	 Rs.
									       
	 Ceylon Plastics Ltd.				    88.11%	 88.11%	  212,570 	  212,570 
	 The Swadeshi Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.			   100%	 100%	  145,000,200 	 145,000,200 
	 The Swadeshi Chemicals (Pvt) Ltd.			   99.99%	 99.99%	  6,500,180 	  6,500,180 
	 Total Gross Carrying Value of Investments in Subsidiaries				     151,712,950 	 151,712,950 
	 Provision for Impairment of Investment (Note 13.1)				      (92,118,695)	  (91,474,444)
	 Total Net Carrying Value of Investments in Subsidiaries				     59,594,255 	  60,238,506 
 
13.1	 Provision for Impairment of Investment							     
							     
						    
	 Impairment provision recognized on,							     
	 The Swadeshi Chemicals (Pvt) Ltd.					      6,500,180 	  6,500,180 
	 The Swadeshi Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.					      85,618,515 	  84,974,264 
							        92,118,695 	  91,474,444 
 									       
				  
13.2	 The Company carried out impairment test through the determinition of fair value of the investments .During the year The 
	 Company made an additional provision of Rs.644,251/- (2021/2022 - Rs. 620,611/-) against the investment The Swadeshi
	 Marketing (Pvt) Ltd. This Increased the total provision against the said investment to Rs. 85,618,515/-.			 
								      
	 The Company had impaired its invetment in The Swadeshi Chemicals (Pvt) Ltd amounting to Rs. 6,500,180/- due to
	 negative net assets position. Even though the net assets have become positive, based on the current macro economic situation
	 of the country, the management intends  to carry forward the said provision. 				  
								      
	 Financial Statements of the Ceylon Plastics Ltd & The Swadeshi Marketing (Pvt) Ltd have been prepared on a
	 basis other than going concern since the operation of these two subsidiaries had been ceased. Accordingly, the assets 
	 and liabilities are recorded at their realizable amount.					   
								      
14.	 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS						    
									       
					                           Group		                    Company	
14.1	 Financial Liabilities				    2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Current Interest -bearing loans and borrowings					   
	 Interest Bearing Borrowings (Note 14.3)			    5,206,101 	  10,440,000 	  -   	  -   
	 Obligations under Leases Liabilities (Note 23.1)		   2,000,242 	  1,824,166 	  2,000,242 	  1,824,166
	 Bank overdrafts (Note 21.2)				     169,106,349 	  97,223,358 	  169,106,349 	  97,223,358 
	 Short Term Loans (Note 15.2)								      
	
	 Bank Loans								      
	 People’s Bank 				    83,132,732 	  24,113,059 	  83,132,732 	  24,113,059 
	 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC			    179,731,963 	  189,420,295 	 179,731,963 	 189,420,295 
	 DFCC				     79,972,006 	  89,672,128 	  79,972,006 	  89,672,128 
	 Nation Trust Bank				     57,987,202 	  40,704,799 	  57,987,202 	  40,704,799 
	 National Development Bank PLC			    -   	  28,014,000 	  -   	 28,014,000 
	 Total Current Interest-bearing-loans and borrowings		   577,136,595 	 481,411,806 	  571,930,494 	 470,971,806 
	
	 Non-Current Interest -bearing loans and borrowings						    
	 Obligations under leases Liabilities  (Note 23)		   3,272,919 	  5,273,161 	  3,272,919 	  5,273,161 
	 Interest Baring Borrowings (Note 14.3)			    -   	  5,140,000 	  -   	  -   
	 Total Non-Current Interest-bearing-loans and borrowings		  3,272,919 	  10,413,161 	  3,272,919 	  5,273,161 
					   
	 Total Interest-bearing loans and borrowings			   580,409,514 	  491,824,967 	  575,203,413 	 476,244,967 
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14.	 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS	(Contd...)					   
	 			 
									       
							     
14.2	 Short Term Loans - Group/Company		  Interest	 As at 	 Loans	 Repayment/	 As at 
				    Rate	 01.04.2022	 Obtained	 Transfer 	 31.03.2022
	 Bank Loans			   %	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 People’s Bank 			  AWPLR+3.5%	  24,113,059 	  548,520,129 	  (489,500,456)	  83,132,732 
	 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC		 AWPLR+2.5%	 189,420,295 	  558,702,407 	  (568,390,739)	  179,731,963
	 Hatton National Bank PLC			  AWPLR+2%	  -   	  70,528,500 	  (70,528,500)	  -   
	 National Development Bank			  AWPLR+2%	  28,014,000 	  -   	  (28,014,000)	  -   
	 Nation Trust Bank			  AWPLR+0.5%	  40,704,799 	  274,853,912 	  (257,571,509)	  57,987,202 
	 DFCC 			  AWPLR+1%	 89,672,128 	  191,573,172 	 (201,273,294)	  79,972,006 
					      371,924,281 	1,644,178,120 	 (1,615,278,498)	  400,823,903 
  
									       
							     
14.3	 Long Term Loans - Group			   Interest	 As at 	 Loans	 Repayment/	 As at 
				    Rate	 01.04.2022	 Obtained	 Transfer 	 31.03.2023
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.

	 People’s Bank			   4%	   15,580,000 	  -   	  (10,373,899)	  5,206,101 
					      15,580,000 	  -   	  (10,373,899)	  5,206,101 

									       
						    
		  	 2023	 2023	 2023	 2022	 2022	 2022
			   Amount 	 Amount 	 Total	 Amount 	 Amount	 Total
			  Repayable	 Repayable		  Repayable	 Repayable	
		                                             Within 1 Year		 After 1 Year		  Within 1 Year	 After 1 Year	
			   Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
									       
	 Term Loan		   5,206,101 	  -   	  5,206,101 	  10,440,000 	  5,140,000 	  15,580,000 
 

					   
15.	 INVENTORIES  								      
					                               Group		                         Company	
					     2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Raw Materials                 				     614,282,606 	  455,039,883 	  614,282,606 	 455,039,883 
	 Work in Progress           				     8,448,106 	  23,703,907 	  8,448,106 	  23,703,907 
	 Finished Goods               				     271,928,414 	  167,801,537 	  271,928,414 	 167,801,537 
	 Consumables and Spares  				     26,281,353 	  30,148,547 	 26,281,353 	  30,148,547 
	 Allowances for Slow Moving Inventories			    (16,510,110)	  (11,554,240)	  (16,510,110)	  (11,554,240)
					      904,430,369 	 665,139,634 	 904,430,369 	 665,139,634 
  					   
16.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES							     
					                                Group		                           Company		
					     2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
16.1	 Summary				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
									       
	 Trade Receivables - Related Parties (Note 16.4)		   -   	  -   	  -   	 91,711,892 
					      -   	  -   	  -   	 91,711,892 

 	                 - Others				       503,885,056 	 390,928,621 	  469,835,876 	 235,787,534 
	 Provision for Doubtful Debts				       (11,470,274)	  (8,826,900)	  (2,405,486)	  (3,127,307)
					        492,414,781  	  382,101,721 	  467,430,390 	 232,660,227 
	  				       492,414,781 	 382,101,721 	 467,430,390	  324,372,119 

	 Other Receivables - Related Parties (Note 16.5)		   -   	  -   	  1,707,206 	  1,618,306 
	                 - Others				       6,874,199 	 9,228,072 	  2,910,971 	  7,491,672 
 					       499,288,980 	 391,329,793 	 472,048,567 	 333,482,096 

 

									       
							     

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd...)				  
						    
16.2	 As at 31 March 2023, trade receivables of the Group with an initial value of Rs.11,470,274/- (2022 - Rs.8,826,899/-) were 
	 individually impaired and fully provided.					   
									       
							       Group	 Company
							       Rs.	 Rs.
	 As at 01 April 						       8,826,899 	  3,127,307 
	 Reversal for the year						       (57,873)	  -   
	 Write off against provision						       (1,567,631)	  (721,821)
	 Adjustment 	
	 charge for the year						       4,268,879	  -   
	 As at 31 March 						       11,470,274 	  2,405,486 
 		

16.3	 Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally 30-90 day terms. As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade 
	 receivables is as follows:	 						      	
		
				  
	 Group			   Neither past 		  Past due but not impaired 		   Individually 
								        assessed 	
				    due nor 	 1-30 	 31-90 	  91-360 	 360+ 
			    Total 	  Impaired 	  days 	  days 	  days 	  days 
			    Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 
									       
				  
	 2023		   503,885,056 	  364,984,157 	 87,641,571 	 22,507,831 	  19,493,807 	  9,257,691 
	 2022		   390,928,621 	 308,584,634 	 35,970,925 	 18,714,034 	 20,053,254 	  7,605,774 
 
				  
	 Company			    Neither past 		  Past due but not impaired 		   Individually 
								        assessed 
				     due nor 	  1-30 	  31-90 	  91-360 	  360+ 
			    Total 	  Impaired 	  days 	  days 	  days 	  days 
			    Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 
				  
	 2023		   469,835,876 	  360,815,593 	  86,028,560 	  18,527,695 	  2,102,000 	  2,362,028 
	 2022		   235,787,534 	  211,925,045 	  18,891,068 	  859,792 	  1,046,270 	  3,065,359
 
				  
16.4	 Trade Receivables due from  Related Parties 		

					                           Group		                    Company		
					     2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
				    Relationship	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
									       
	 The Swadeshi Chemicals (Private) Limited		  Subsidiary	   -   	  -   	  -   	 91,711,892 
					     -   	  -   	  -   	 91,711,892 
 
									       
16.5	 Other Receivables due from Related Parties			                         Group	                                  Company	
					     2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
				    Relationship	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Ceylon Plastics Limited			   Subsidiary	  -   	  -   	  1,707,206 	  1,618,306 
	 The Swadeshi Plantation Limited		  Affiliate	  196,866 	  196,866 	 196,866 	  196,866 
	 The Swadeshi Consumer Products Limited		  Affiliate	 39,704 	  39,704 	  39,704 	  39,704 
	 The Swadeshi Resorts & Spas Limited		  Affiliate	  20,571 	 20,571 	  20,571 	  20,571 
	 The Swadeshi Holiday Resort Limited		  Affiliate	 20,571 	  20,571 	  20,571 	  20,571 
	 The Swadeshi Power (Private) Limited		  Affiliate	  84,205 	  84,205 	  84,205 	  84,205 
	 Provision for Doubtful Debts			  Affiliate	 (361,919)	  (361,919)	  (361,919)	  (361,919)
					      -   	  -   	 1,707,206 	  1,618,306 
 									       
17.	 STATED  CAPITAL - Group/Company			                          2023                                     2022
					     Number	 Rs.	 Number	 Rs.	
	 Issued and Fully Paid Ordinary Shares 			    
	 As at April 01 				     149,333 	150,634,670 	  149,333 	 150,634,670 
	 As at March 31				      149,333 	 150,634,670	  149,333 	 150,634,670 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

18.	 REVALUATION RESERVE	
		                                                                                                                        Group		                      Company		
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Balance as at the beginning of the year	 1,225,739,557 	 1,075,401,531 	 1,139,619,233 	 993,034,210 
	 Transfers on Disposals 	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Revaluations during the year	  85,337,375 	  174,487,625 	  77,936,375 	 168,888,625 
	 Income Tax Effect on Revaluation	  (193,342,904)	  (23,643,150)	  (183,407,718)	 (22,303,601)
	 Transfer to Non-controlling interest	  301,315 	  (506,449)	  -   	  -   
	 Balance as at the end of the year	  1,118,035,343 	 1,225,739,557 	 1,034,147,890  1,139,619,233 
 
						    
18.1	 Nature and Purpose of Revaluation Reserve			 
	 Asset revaluation reserve				  
	 The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increases in the fair value of  land and plant and machinery and decreases 
	 to the extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same asset previously recognized in equity.			 
				    	
19.	 RETIREMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY	                                                               Group		                   Company		
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
19.1		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Balance as at the beginning of the year	   43,870,822 	 26,636,393 	  43,870,822 	 26,636,393 
 	 Current Service Cost	  3,355,377 	  6,128,677 	  3,355,377 	  6,128,677 
	 Interest Cost 	  6,580,623 	 2,120,257 	  6,580,623 	  2,120,257 
 	 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss	   (8,768,941)	  13,696,353 	  (8,768,941)	  13,696,353 
	 Payments during the year	   (1,176,794)	 (2,810,748)	  (1,176,794)	  (2,810,748)
	 Past Service Cost	  -   	  (1,900,110)		  (1,900,110)
	 Balance as at the end of the year	   43,861,088 	 43,870,822 	  43,861,088 	 43,870,822 
 					   
	 The expenses are recognized in the following line items in the statement of comprehensive income.			 
					   
	 Administrative Expenses	  9,936,001 	  6,348,824 	  9,936,001 	  6,348,824 
 	 Other Comprehensive Income	  (8,768,941)	  13,696,353 	  (8,768,941)	  13,696,353 
		   1,167,060 	 20,045,177 	 1,167,060 	 20,045,177 
					   
19.2	 Messrs. Acturial and Management Consultants (Private) Limited,  independent acturial specialists carried out an actuarial 
	 valuation of the defined benefit plan gratuity as at 31 March 2023. Appropriate and compatible assumptions were used in 
	 determining the cost of retirement benefits. The principal assumptions used are as follows:		
				  
				    2023	 2022
	 Discount of Interest			   23% p.a.	 15% p.a.
	 Rate of Salary Increase			   18% p.a.	 10% p.a.
	 Retirement Age			   60 Years	 60 Years
	 Staff Turnover:			   29%	 10%
						    
                                                                                                                 Expected Future Salaries 	               Discount Rate 
19.3	 Sensitivity of the principal assumptions used	  1% increase 	  1% decrease 	 1% increase	 1% decrease 
		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Group/Company				  
	 Change in Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation	    995,308 	  (959,132)	  (819,154)	  862,307 
  
19.4	 Expected average future working life of the active participants is 2.9 years. (2022 - 7.04 Years)			 
				  
19.5	 The following are the expected payments to the defined benefit plan in future years				  
				    Group	 Company
				    2023	 2022
				    Rs.	 Rs.
	 Within the next 12 months			    21,571,527 	 22,517,537 
	 Between 1 to 5 years			   17,217,599 	
	 Between 2 and 5 Years			    -   	 10,369,539 
	 Between 5 and 10 Years			    4,733,462 	  8,459,325 
	 Beyond 10 Years			    338,499 	  2,524,421 
	 Total Expected Payments			    43,861,087 	 43,870,822 
	
	 During the financials Year 2021/2022, the Pension Arrangement was adjusted to reflect new legal requirement as per Minimum 
	 retirement age of Workers Act No.28 of 2021 regarding the retirement age.					   
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			                        Group	                                  Company		
20.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
			   Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Trade Payables		   45,964,345 	  56,297,165 	  42,847,697 	  53,183,644 
	 Other Payables - Related parties (Note 20.1)		   -   	  -   	 75,681,226 	  63,548,673 
	 Sundry Creditors Including Accrued Expenses		   510,057,469 	319,831,651 	 498,755,846 	 294,309,300 
			    556,021,816 	376,128,816 	 617,284,769	  411,041,617
							     
	 Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities					   
	 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30- 60 day terms			 
	 Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of two months					   
				     	
20.1	 Other Payables Due to Related Parties		                       Group		                   Company		
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
		  Relationship	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
							     
	 The Swadeshi Marketing (Private) Limited	 Subsidiary	  -   	  -   	 63,191,568 	  63,548,673 
	 The Swadeshi Chemicals (Private) Limited	 Subsidiary	  -   	  -   	 12,489,658 	  -   
			    -   	  -   	 75,681,226 	  63,548,673 
				  
21.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT						    
	 Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents		                       Group		                  Company		
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
			   Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
21.1	 Favourable Cash and Cash Equivalents Balances						    
	 Cash and Bank Balance		    31,849,530 	  20,333,533 	  30,116,169 	  16,765,220 
21.2	 Unfavourable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances						    
             	Bank Overdraft		   (169,106,349)	 (97,223,358)	 (169,106,349)	  (97,223,358)
	 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of
	  Cash Flow Statement		   (137,256,819)	 (76,889,825)	 (138,990,180)	  (80,458,138

22.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES						    
	 Details of significant related party disclosures are as follows;						    
			                    Subsidiaries				  
22.1	 Transactions with Related Entities 		  2023	 2022	
			   Rs.	 Rs.
	 Nature of Transactions 						    
	 As at 1 April 		  29,781,525 	  63,022,096    
	 Sales		  339,006,045 	 375,029,660   
	 Settlements received during the year		   (461,100,000)	 (419,080,000)	   
	 Collection / Payment on behalf of the Company		  (30,875,953)	 (5,712,697)	   
	 Expenses Incurred by the Company		   49,214,363 	  -   	   
	 Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company		   -   	 16,522,466 	
	 As at 31 March		   (73,974,020)	   29,781,525 	   

	 Included in,					   
	 Trade and Other Receivables		   1,707,206 	  93,330,198 	   
	 Trade and Other Payables		   (75,681,226)	 (63,548,673)	   
	 Interest -bearing loans and borrowings		   -   	  -   	    
			    (73,974,020)	 29,781,525 	

					   
22.1.1	 Terms and Conditions of Significant Related Party Transactions:	 					   
				  
	 “Sales and Settlements - Apart form the normal distribution network, The Swadeshi Industrial Works PLC distributes its products 
	 through The Swadeshi Chemicals (Pvt) Limited and  those sales to related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that 
	 prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement 
	 occurs in cash”						    

	 Collections / Payments on behalf of the Company  - Payments and Collections have made on behalf of the expenses incurred for 
	 the group by Swadeshi Marketing (Pvt) Ltd and Swadeshi Chemical (Pvt) Ltd.					   
					   
22.2	 Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Company						    
	 The key management personnel of the Company includes the Directors of the Company and Directors in subsidiaries.		
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

22.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd…)							    
			 
							       2023	 2022
22.3	 Compensation to Key Management Personnel						    
							       Rs.	 Rs.
	 Nature of transaction	
		 Short Term Employment Benefits					     32,595,464   	  29,972,264 
 
23.	 LEASE LIABILITIES (GROUP/COMPANY)							     
					                        
					                       2023	                                       2022		
					     Minimum	Present value	 Minimum	 Present value
					     payments	 of payments	 payments	 of payments
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Current Liability 				     2,404,618 	  2,000,242 	 2,404,618 	  1,824,166 
	 Non - Current Liability 				     3,511,718 	  3,272,919 	  5,916,337 	  5,273,161 
	 Total minimum lease payments			   5,916,336 	 5,273,161 	  8,320,955 	  7,097,327 
	 Less : Finance Charges allocated to future periods		  (643,176)	  -   	  (1,223,628)	  -   
	 Present value of minimum lease payments			    5,272,160 	 5,273,161 	  7,097,327 	  7,097,327 

		
23.1.1	 Leases				    As at 	 Leases		  As at 
					     01.04.2022	 Obtained	 Repayment	 31.03.2023
					     Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Gross Liability				     8,320,955 	  -   	  2,404,618 	  5,916,337 
	 Finance Charges 				     (1,223,628)	  -   	  (580,452)	  (643,176)
	 Net liability				     7,097,327 	  -   	 1,824,166 	  5,273,161 
 
								      
23.1.2	 The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s/ Company’s Leasehold liabilities based on contractual 
	 payments.								      
			 
	 Year ended 31 March 2023			   On demand	 Less than 3	 3 to 12	 1 to 5	 Total
					     months	 months	 years	
				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Leasehold Liabilities			     200,385 	 400,770 	  1,803,464 	  3,511,718 	  5,916,337 
 	  			     200,385 	 400,770 	  1,803,464 	  3,511,718 	  5,916,337 
 
								      
	
24.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES					   
					   
									       
	 The Group’s principal financial liabilities, comprise trade and other payables and interest bearing loans and borrowings. 
	 The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and assets. The Group has trade and 
	 other receivables, and cash and short term deposits that arrive directly from its operations.				  
			 
	
	 “The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.“					   
					   
	 Market Risk								      
		
	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
	 in market prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other 
	 price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and deposits, The objective 
	 of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing 
	 the return.								      
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24.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd...)					   
								      
	 Interest rate risk								      
	 The Group interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings issued at variable rates.  The company manages its
	 interest rate risk by actively monitoring the yield curve trend and interest rate movement for the various financial
	 instruments.								      
	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
	 of changes in market interest rates. Fluctuation in interest rate has a impact on the Group since it is depends on bank 
	 overdrafts and short term borrowings. Company’s interest rate varies according to the Bank.
									       
	 Interest rate sensitivity								      
	 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of 
	 loans and borrowings, With all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the 
	 impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:						    
							     
	 			  Increase/ decrease in basis points		 Effect on profit before tax
	 2023								      
	 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 		  +/- 1000		   	+/- 47,624,500 
	 2022								      
	 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 		  +/- 1000			   +/- 47,624,500  
									       
	 Foreign exchange risk								      
	 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
	 of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates 
	 primarily to the import of raw materials and packing materials.					   
			 
	 The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rate, with all other 
	 variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary 
	 assets and liabilities. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31st March 2023, and sensitivity analysis to 
	 profit & loss and equity if exchange rate increased / (decrease) by 10%.				  
	
					                  Company		                     Group		
	 As at 31 March 2023		 Change in rates		 Effect on profit before tax		      Effect on profit before tax		
				                                      Rs.	                    Rs.		            Rs.                   Rs.
	 USD	                                     + 10%	          - 10%                    	  251,624,506 	 (251,624,506)	 256,550,574 	 (256,550,574)
				                                            Company		                     Group		
	 As at 31 March 2022		 Change in rates		 Effect on profit before tax		      Effect on profit before tax		
	                                   			                                      Rs.	                    Rs.		            Rs.                   Rs.
	 USD	                                     + 10%	          - 10%                    	   13,983,365 		 (13,983,365)	 15,754,535 	  (15,754,535)

	 Credit risk								      
	 The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily from its trade receivables, which arise from its operating activities and 
	 its deposits with banking institutions. The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimizing 
	 losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure.
	  								      
	 The Group trades only with recognized and credit worthy third parties and all customers are subject to a credit
	 verification process. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the 
	 Group’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. The Group also obtains security deposits from distributors in order to
	 mitigate	 the counter party risk.							     
				  
	 Liquidity risk								      
	 Liquidity risk mainly arise as the Group is mainly depends on short term borrowings and in which case the company 
	 might encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group monitors its risk 
	 to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
	 between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, loans, and finance leases. 		
			 
	 The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments.		
		
	 Year ended 31 March 2023			   On demand	 Less than	 3 to 12	 1 to 5 	 Total	
					     3 months	 months	 years
				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings		   -   	577,136,594 	  3,272,919 	  -   	 580,409,513 
   	 Trade and other payables			    -	 556,021,814 	  -   	  -   	 556,021,814 
  				      -	1,133,158,408 	 3,272,919 	  -	 1,136,431,327 
 
	 Year ended 31 March 2022			   On demand	 Less than	 3 to 12	 1 to 5 	 Total	
					     3 months	 months	 years
				    Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs	
	 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings		    97,423,743 	 372,325,052 	  6,943,464 	 16,356,337 	  493,048,596 
	 Trade and other payables	  		  -   	376,128,816 	 -   	  -   	 376,128,81
				    97,423,743 	  748,453,868 	  6,943,464 	 16,356,337 	  869,177,412 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31st March 2023

24.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd...)				  
						    
	 Capital management					   
	 Capital includes only the  equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent.				  
					   
	 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure the  healthy capital ratios in order to support its 
	 business and maximize shareholder value.					   
						    
	 The group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were 
	 made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March  2023.		
		
	 Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
	 calculated as total borrowings by total equity. Total borrowings including non-current and current borrowings as 
	 shown in the statements of financial position. Total equity is calculated as ‘Total equity’ in the statements of financial 
	 position.					   
	
	 Gearing ration as at 31 March is as follows :	 				  
					   
		                                                                                                     Group		                         Company		
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
	 Borrowings	   580,409,513 	 491,824,967 	  575,203,412 	  476,244,967 
  	 Total Equity	      1,698,322,517	 1,598,171,693 	   1,581,604,832	 1,481,595,915 
 	 Gearing Ration : Debt to Equity	 0.34	 0.31	 0.36	 0.32

			 
25.	 FAIR VALUES					   
					   
	 The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and 
	 other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
	 instruments.					   
		
	 The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be ex
	 changed in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.			 
		
	 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:				  
		
	 Variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates, specific 
	 country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. 
	 Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected losses of these receivables.		
		
	 The fair values of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using the DCF method using 
	 discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance 
	 risk as at 31 March 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.					   
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Year Ended 31st March 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.	 FAIR VALUES (Contd...)								      
					   
					   
25.1	 The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:		
					   
	 The fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023:						   
									       
									       
						     Fair value measurement using		
			   Date of	 Total		 “Quoted prices 	 Significant	 Significant
			   valuation			   in active 	 observable	 unobservable
						      markets	 inputs	 inputs	
 						      (Level 1)	 (Level 2)	 (Level 3) 
	 Assets measured at fair value								      
	 Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment
	 Land & Building		  31-Mar-23	  1,435,874,188 		   -   	  -   	 1,435,874,188 
	 (Note 11) - Company		   

	 Plant & Machinery		  31-Mar-21	   152,951,620 		   -   	  -   	 152,951,620 
	 (Note 11) - Company 
			 
	 Land & Building		  31-Mar-23	  1,571,874,188 		   -   	  -   	 1,571,874,188 
	  (Note 11) - Group

	 “Plant & Machinery 		  31-Mar-21	  152,951,620 		   -   	  -   	 152,951,620 

	 (Note 11) - Group
	
	 Investments in Subsidiaries								      
	 The Swadeshi Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.    	 31-Mar-23	   59,381,685 		   -   	  -   	  59,381,685 
	 ( Note 13) Company		   
	
					   
26.	 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD							     
			 
	 There were no material events occurring after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosure in the
	 financial statements other than those given below.							     
						    
	 The Board of the directors of the Company has recommended a final dividend of Rs. 1.5/- per share for the financial
 	 year ended 31 March 2023 subject to shareholders approval at the Annual General Meeting.
							     
						    
27.	 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 							     
						    
27.1	 Commitments								      
	 There are no material commitments as at the reporting date.						    
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       	 1	-        	 1,000	
	 1,001 	-	 10,000			 
	 10,001	-	 100,000			 
	 100,001	-	 1,000,000			 
                    	     Over 1,000,000			 

	
				  
				  

Investor’s Information

1. Twenty Largest Shareholders as At 31/03/2023

No. of Shares Percentage

2. Shareholdings as At 31st March 2022

Percentage (%)Holdings No. of 
Share Holders 

No. of 
Shares 

1.Ms.C.S.M.Samarasinghe	 50,388	 33.74
2.Seylan Bank Plc/Senthilverl Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.	 37,022	 24.79
3.Sedawatte Exports LTD	 29,455	 19.72
4.Sampath Bank PLC/Dr. T. Senthilverl	 15,968	 10.69
5.Ms. A.M.Wijewardene	 2,298	 1.54
6.Mr. L. C. Lobo	 1,546	 1.04
7.Miss. D.K. Munasinghe	 1,384	 0.93
8.Mr. S. Vytilingam	 952	 0.64
9.Mrs. M.E.Wemyss	 813	 0.54
10.Estate of the Late Mr. V.K. Joshi	 510	 0.34
11.Mr. K.D. Joshi	 509	 0.34
12.The Life Insurance Corporation Lanka ltd.	 400	 0.27
13.S . Santhosa Nadar Limited	 400	 0.27
14.Estate of the Late Mr. A . R . M . Thassim	 400	 0.27
15.Estate of the Late Mr. W.A.J. Lobo	 383	 0.26
16.Mrs. S.C. Fernando	 340	 0.23
17.Mr. C. Abeywickreme	 336	 0.23
18.Administrator of the Estate of the Late Dr. C.L.S. Ferdinands	 333	 0.22
19.Mr. S. Vythilingam	 317	 0.21
20. Mrs.S. Kumarasingham	 266	 0.18
	 144,020 	 96.28

11,272
5,228

132,833
0
0

149,333

218
3
4
0
0

7.50
3.50

89.00
0
0

100

3. Percentage of Public Shareholding 

(i).The company’s shares are listed on the Diri Savi Board since 28th November 2017.  As per section 7.14.1 A 
Listed Entity whose shares are listed on the Diri Savi Board shall maintain a Minimum Public Holding Requirement 

(ii). Company belongs to the First option as the company’s “Float Adjusted Market Capitalization” is above the 
minimum threshold, which is Rs. 1 Bn. Further it is above the “Minimum Public Holding Percentage” which is 
7.5% and is also above the “Minimum Number of Public Shareholders”.

(iii) Number of Shareholders of the Company as at 31st March 2023
	 No. of CDS Shareholders                      -   140
	 No. of N-CDS Shareholders                  -     85
                                  	        Total                    -   225
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Investor’s Information

(iv). Percentage of shares held by the public as at 31/03/2023

	 Total number of shares issued	 149,333
	 No. of shares held by public	 66,995
	 No. of public share holder	 218
	 Percentage of shares held by public	 44.86%
	 Float Adjusted Market Capitalization (Rs)   1,005,096,225/-

4.  Market and Other information

		 a) Market Value	        31/03/2023	 31/03/2022
			  Rs.	 Rs. 	
		 Highest Price	 16,000	 18,379
		 Lowest Price	 15,500	 14,000
		 Last Transacted Price	 15,004	 15,004

                       	 31/03/2023	 31/03/2022
			  Rs.	 Rs.

		  b) Earnings per Share	 1,318.27	 20.46	
		  c) Dividend per Share	 1.50	 1.00
		  d) Net Assets Value per Share	 10,591.19	 9,921.42
		  e) Dividend pay out(ratio)	 0.001	 0.05
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